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Statement of Compliance

Hon Peter Collier MLC

Minister for Aboriginal Affairs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management
Act 2006, I hereby submit for information and presentation
to Parliament, the Annual Reports for the Department of
Aboriginal Affairs and the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.
These Annual Reports have been prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
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Overview

Our Future
Aboriginal people benefit from the
same opportunities, expectations
and standards as non-Aboriginal
people whilst maintaining a strong,
vibrant culture.

Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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From the Director General
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs (the Department) is the lead
Government agency for ensuring better outcomes for Aboriginal
people in Western Australia. This year, I am pleased to report that
the majority of strategic projects identified in the Department’s
Strategic Framework 2012-14 have either reached completion or
are in progress, with significant outcomes already achieved.
These achievements include the State Government release of
the draft Aboriginal Heritage Amendment Bill 2014 for public
consultation in June 2014, the progression of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT) estate divestment and the provision of $5.7 million in
funding for 14 Aboriginal community patrols across the State.
It also includes the establishment of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee, created to improve effectiveness of Government
spending, reduce duplication, drive better coordination and
collaboration in Aboriginal affairs.
This is one of the most significant changes in the Aboriginal affairs
space for decades, and ensures that the top-levels of State
Government have a real and lasting commitment to proactive
policy and achieving positive impacts in Aboriginal affairs.
While our various achievements are noteworthy, it is the renewed vigour that the Department is displaying
to our work that is most pleasing. For the first time in years, the Department is becoming an ‘employer of
choice’, offering a dynamic work environment and the opportunity to have a real impact on the community.
As a result, the Department has added high-level talent to its relatively small workforce. Our staff are also
now more accountable, following the development of an innovative online performance management system
to streamline reporting requirements. This has led to greater transparency and accountability of government
productivity and delivery against the Department’s key projects, programs and activities.
All of this has the Department well positioned to move from a focus on reform to a focus on influencing
positive outcomes for Aboriginal people across the State.
I would like to acknowledge members of the Department’s statutory boards, the ALT, Aboriginal Cultural
Material Committee, Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council and the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee, for their ongoing contributions to Aboriginal affairs. I commend outgoing ALT Chair, Clinton Wolf,
and ALT member, Irene Stainton, whose leadership and knowledge have made lasting contributions to the
management of the ALT estate. I also welcome new ALT Chair, Shane Hamilton, as well as new members of
our boards, whom I believe will bring a depth of experience and wisdom to their roles.
Thank you to all Departmental staff and our stakeholders who, through their commitment and hard work,
have contributed to resolving the Department’s legacy issues and progressing the Department along its path
of reform and improvement. In particular, I thank the Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs,
and his staff for their ongoing support and guidance.
In the coming year, the Department will build on its recent successes in improving outcomes for both
government and the Aboriginal community, and will continue on its pursuit to influence government and hold
government agencies accountable in meeting the needs and expectations of the Aboriginal community.
Cliff Weeks
Director General
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Highlights of the Year

Draft Aboriginal
Heritage Amendment
Bill 2014 released for
public consultation
Progressing better protection
and transparency in the
application of the Aboriginal
Heritage Act 1972 through
legislative reform

$235,000 provided to
229 schools to undertake
261 PALS projects in 2013
Promoting and advancing
reconciliation within schools and
communities
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Highlights of the Year
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An Introduction to
the Department
Our Purpose

Leadership

Managing Aboriginal heritage and land held in
trust for future generations. Ensuring outcomes
for Aboriginal people through community
development and government investments.

We...

Our Future

•

Aboriginal people benefit from the same
opportunities, expectations and standards as
non-Aboriginal people whilst maintaining a strong,
vibrant culture.

•

Our Values

•

We...
•

•

Embrace Aboriginal culture
Respect Aboriginal cultural values and
ways of working and promote an improved
understanding in the wider community.

•

Set clear, consistent and achievable goals
Communicate clear direction; be proactive;
promote innovative ideas; and be prepared to
make tough decisions.
Build and support our team to perform
Offer opportunities; recognise contributions;
encourage staff development; delegate
responsibility; and engage the right people to
do the right job.
Collaborate
Create purposeful and strategic relationships
in which all parties choose to cooperate in
order to accomplish shared outcomes for
Aboriginal people.
Set an example
Share information; take responsibility for
actions; admit mistakes; be receptive to ideas
and feedback; and model desired behaviours
in all situations.

Show respect
Value the worth of individuals, Aboriginal
expertise, the knowledge of Elders and our
Australian Indigenous history.

Responsible Minister

•

Take responsibility
Take ownership of our actions and clearly
articulate their purpose and outcomes.

The Department is responsible to the Hon Peter
Collier MLC, Minister for Education; Aboriginal
Affairs; Electoral Affairs (the Minister).

•

Act with integrity
Earn and sustain public trust by performing
our work conscientiously, reliably and
transparently.

Enabling Legislation

•

•

Foster innovation
Develop leading edge approaches and
translate them into tangible action for the
benefit of the community.
Achieve excellence
Strive to do things better and collectively
create a culture of achievement.

The Department is established as a department
under section 35 of the Public Sector
Management Act 1994.

Administered Legislation
The Department is responsible for administering
the following legislation that affects the wellbeing
of Aboriginal people:
Aboriginal
Affairs
Planning
Authority Act
1972

Consultation, planning, coordination
and adequacy of services to
Aboriginal people. Establishes the
Aboriginal Lands Trust, which has
operational functions related to land.

Aboriginal
Heritage Act
1972

Specific responsibilities relating to
the protection and administration of
heritage sites.

Aboriginal
Enables Aboriginal people to
Communities establish by-laws that govern
Act 1979
conduct on and access to
community lands.
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Organisational Structure

DEPARTMENT OF
ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE
DIRECTOR GENERAL

CORPORATE
SERVICES

Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee
Intergovernmental Unit
Ministerial Liaison Unit
Strategy & Performance

Finance
Human Resources
Information Systems
Legal

HERITAGE
Advice & Approvals
Office of the Chief
Heritage Officer
Policy & Reform
Site Assessment

LAND

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNMENT

Economic Development
Land Operations
Policy & Reform
Priority Projects

Community Partnerships
Community Programs
Policy & Reform
Priority Projects

Aboriginal Affairs
Coordinating Committee
Policy & Reform
Priority Projects
Regional Coordination
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Performance
Management Framework
Outcome Based Management Framework
The Department contributes to the two Government goals of:
1. SOCIAL and ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY: ensuring that economic activity is managed in a
socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of the State; and
2. FINANCIAL and ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY: managing the State’s finances through the efficient
and effective delivery of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on
the private sector.
Diagram 1.1 shows the relationship between the Department’s services and desired outcomes and the
government goals they contribute to. The key effectiveness indicators measure the extent of impact of
the delivery of services on the achievement of desired outcomes. The key efficiency indicators monitor
the relationship between the service delivered and the resources used to produce the service.

Diagram 1.1 Outcomes Based Management Framework
Outcomes Based Management Framework
Government Goals
Social and
Environmental
Responsibility

Financial and Economic Responsibility
Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective
delivery of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory
burden on the private sector.

Ensuring that economic activity
is managed in a socially and
environmentally responsible
manner for the long-term
benefit of the State.

Outcomes
Heritage
Achieving the right balance
between development and
protection of Aboriginal
heritage to ensure
economic opportunities are
leveraged to the benefit of
the whole community.

Land Management
Better utilisation of the
ALT estate to achieve
shared social and
economic outcomes.

Accountable
Government
Improving accountability
for the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal
people from government
investments.

Community Development
Supporting the Western
Australian Aboriginal
community to independently
determine and further its
identified priorities.

Effectiveness Indicators
Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied
with the services related
to the management of
Aboriginal heritage.
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Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to
the management of ALT
estate.

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to
improving accountability
for the delivery of services
to Aboriginal people.

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied
with services related to
community development
programs for Aboriginal
people.

Performance
Management Framework
Outcomes
Heritage

Accountable
Government

Land Management

Community Development

Service
This service involves the
provision of secretariat and
policy support for the
Aboriginal Cultural Material
Committee; provision of
advice on matters relating
to Aboriginal heritage;
processing of statutory
approvals; administration of
the heritage sites register;
family history research;
and heritage compliance
activities.

This service involves the
provision of secretariat and
policy support to the ALT;
provision of advice to the
ALT, Aboriginal people, the
Minister, government and
key stakeholders in relation
to management of ALT;
processing of land access
approvals; assisting with the
operational management
and development of land;
management of strategic
initiatives in accordance
with the ALT strategic plan;
and facilitating the transfer
of land to Aboriginal people.

This service involves
the provision of
secretariat and
policy support for
the Aboriginal Affairs
Coordinating
Committee, including
advice, monitoring
and reporting on the
delivery of outcomes for
Aboriginal people from
government investments
and intergovernmental
activities.

This service involves the
provision of secretariat
and policy support for
the Western Australian
Aboriginal Advisory
Council; developing
partnerships that
build the capacity
of Aboriginal people
to improve social
outcomes; and
reconciliation activities.

Efficiency Indicators
Average processing time per
statutory approval;
average time to update
register; and average time to
complete initial assessment.

Average processing time
per land transaction.

Average cost per 1,000 of
Aboriginal population.

Average cost per
initiative funded.

Changes to the Outcomes Based Management Framework
There were no changes to the Department’s Outcome Based Management Framework.

Shared Responsibilities
The Department did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2013-14.

11
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Agency
Performance

Luridgii Cultural Experience.
Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Aboriginal artist Shirley Purdie. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Summary of Performance
The Resource Agreement articulates for each
agency the Government’s desired outcomes, the
services to be delivered and the performance
targets to be achieved (both financial and nonfinancial) for the budget year.
The below graph represents the average overall
satisfaction of stakeholders with the services
delivered in the respective measurement periods.
Between the financial years ending 2010 to 2012,
the Department’s effectiveness was measured
against the two superseded service areas of
support to partnerships and partnering initiatives,
and information and advice. Between the financial
years ending 2013 to 2014, effectiveness
was measured against the Department’s four
service areas of Heritage, Land Management,
Accountable Government, and Community
Development.

Whilst not directly comparable, the results
provide an indication of the Department’s overall
effectiveness in each respective period. It should
be noted that:
•
•

the results achieved within each period were
relatively consistent; and
overall improvement is shown since the
introduction of the new Outcome Based
Management Framework in the financial year
ending 2013.

The new Framework was developed to achieve
greater alignment with the new strategic direction
of the Department and seeks to improve the
usefulness and relevancy of the key performance
indicators to the Department’s outcomes
and services. The results collected in the two
consecutive periods since the introduction of the
new Framework will provide a baseline for the
setting of targets for future years.

Stakeholder Satisfaction
2010 to 2012 and 2013 to 2014
100%
90%
80%
70%

Target

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010 to 2012: The combined average satisfaction rating for the Department, based on services
relating to partnership and project initiatives and provision of information and advice (superseded key
performance indicators).
2013 to 2014: The average overall satisfaction rating for stakeholder experiences relating to the four
service areas of the Department (Aboriginal Heritage, Aboriginal Land, Accountable Government, and
Community Development).
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Financial Targets

2013-14 Budget
Estimate
$000

2013-14 Actual
Estimate
$000

Variance
$000

Total Cost of Services (i.e. endorsed
expense limit)

45,883

36,102

9,781

Net Cost of Services (details in the
Income Statement)

44,415

34,745

9,670

Total Equity (details in the Statement
of Financial Position)

6,071

4,520

1,551

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash
Held (details in the Statement of
Cashflows)

(809)

(6,313)

(5,504)

157

165

-8

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff level

Perth Skyline. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Key Effectiveness Indicators

Service 1: Heritage Management
Outcome 1: Achieving the right balance between
development and protection of Aboriginal heritage
to ensure economic opportunities are leveraged to
the benefit of the whole community
1.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the management of Aboriginal
heritage

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

81%

65%

90%

+ 25%

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

63%

65%

59%

- 6%

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

66%

65%

58%

- 7%

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

89%

65%

87%

+22%

Service 2: Land Management
Outcome 2: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT) estate to achieve shared social and
economic outcomes
2.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the management of the
ALT estate

Service 3: Accountable Government
Outcome 3: Improving accountability for the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments
3.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to improving accountability for
the delivery of services to Aboriginal people

Service 4: Community Development
Outcome 4: Supporting the Western Australian
Aboriginal Community to independently determine
and further its priorities
4.1 Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to community development
programs for Aboriginal people
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Key Efficiency Indicators
2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

1.1 Average processing time per statutory approval

65 days

70 days

69 days

-1 day

1.2 Average time to update Register

17 days

33 days

12 days

- 21 days

3 days

28 days

3 days

- 25 days

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

9 days

10 days

8.7 days

- 1.3 days

Service 3: Accountable Government

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

3.1 Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal population

$221,690

$327,956

$142,070

- $185,886

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

$16,807

$16,459

$24,091

$7,632

Service 1: Aboriginal Heritage

1.3 Average time to complete initial assessment

Service 2: Aboriginal Land
2.1 Average processing time per land transaction

Service 4: Community Development
4.1 Average cost per initiative funded

For detailed information, including commentary on trends, refer to the Financial Statements and Key
Performance Indicators included in the Disclosures and Legal Compliance section of this report.

Connie Sue Track. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Report on Operations
The Department engages with Aboriginal Western
Australians and all levels of government to
improve the delivery of services to facilitate the
development of policy and programs which deliver
suitable economic, environmental and social
benefits to Aboriginal communities.
The Department’s operational areas are aligned to
the Department’s Strategic Framework
2012-2014’s (the Framework) focus areas:
•

Aboriginal Heritage drives reforms to the
regulatory environment that improves its
precision, clarity and efficiency.

•

Aboriginal Land focuses on the transfer of
land to Aboriginal organisations to build their
capacity to secure economic returns
from assets.

•

Accountable Government improves the
capability to monitor and audit the quality and
impact of investments in services for
Aboriginal people.

•

Community Development enhances
strategic partnerships that build the capacity
of Aboriginal people to improve
social outcomes.

The Framework contains 45 strategic projects
under the focus areas, including the divestment
of Aboriginal land back to Aboriginal people, the
regulatory reform of the Aboriginal Heritage Act
1972 (Heritage Act) and a focus on governance
and leadership training through partnerships, joint
ventures and innovative solutions such as the
Corporate Performance Management System.
This year, the Department has undertaken
significant work to enhance its organisational
capacity and progress its strategic projects. The
Framework has been instrumental in driving this
cultural shift and establishing the Department as a
lead State Government agency responsible for the
coordination of services to Aboriginal people.

17
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Aboriginal Heritage
In the year under review, the Aboriginal Cultural Material
Committee (the Committee) dealt with 72 Notices under
section 18 of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (Heritage
Act) from individuals and corporations seeking approval
to alter or destroy places or objects of Aboriginal heritage.
Presumably as a result of the downturn in the mining
industry, the number of section 18 Notices dropped off in
the latter part of the year.
The Committee has taken the opportunity to attempt
to reduce the number of outstanding requests for site
assessment, of which as I mentioned last year there are
thousands, and also to review the status of some places and
objects already assessed and on the Register of Aboriginal
Sites. As a consequence, this year the Committee made site
assessments in respect of 1,055 places, approximately 50
per cent more than last year.
Despite the introduction some time ago of a dedicated form
to simplify and streamline the process for those seeking
consent under section 18 by specifically identifying the
relevant questions and issues, the Committee continues
to receive reports from anthropologists and archaeologists engaged by stakeholders which often
appear to pay little regard to the formulae set out in the Heritage Act defining the places and objects to
which the provisions of the Act apply. Recently, the Heritage Committee has endorsed the concept of
electronic lodgement of notices and requests for matters which fall within its jurisdiction. Hopefully, that
will see the development of a simple and streamlined process which responds better to the relevant
questions and issues than is now frequently the case.
In evaluating the importance of places and objects, it is obviously necessary for the Committee to
have regard for the views of the Aboriginal people. The Committee is always interested to know of
the opinions of Aboriginal persons with knowledge of the significance and importance of places or
objects said to be of heritage value. This is especially the case where there is a prospect that the place
or object may be altered or destroyed. Such information can really only be ascertained adequately if
the consultation process with the relevant Aboriginal persons and bodies is open and unrestricted.
Furthermore, the consultation needs to take place against a proper recognition of the terms of the
Heritage Act, especially the terms which define the heritage places and objects to which the Heritage
Act applies. Without that, the prospect of accurately identifying places and objects of heritage value is
likely to be less reliable than might otherwise be the case.
I take this opportunity to thank each of my colleagues for their contribution to the Committee. The
size of the Committee was increased during the year with the appointment of two additional people of
Aboriginal descent. I also place on record my appreciation of the administrative support provided to
the Committee, without which it could not operate satisfactorily. I thank the Departmental officers, in
particular the Director General, Registrar, Chief Heritage Officer and the Committee’s Executive Officer,
for their assistance.
Hon Gavin Fielding
Chair
Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee
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Aboriginal Heritage
Aboriginal heritage is a source of pride and
celebration for Western Australia. Protecting and
celebrating important Aboriginal heritage sites
contributes to a personal and community sense
of identity and wellbeing, as well as encourages
greater public awareness and appreciation of
Aboriginal heritage.

Building strong, productive
relationships with Traditional
Owners and other stakeholders
to ensure important Aboriginal
heritage sites are managed,
preserved and protected for
future generations.
Priority Heritage Protection
In 2013-14, the Department resolved an
approximately 30 year legacy issue concerning
the long term management of engraved boulders
in a significant heritage site, the Hearson Cove
Compound (the Compound) in the
Burrup Peninsula.
In order to address this issue, the Department
brought together the senior men of the Ngarluma,
Yaburara/Mardudhunera, Wong-Goo-Tt-Oo and
Yindjibarndi groups, and government and industry,
and negotiated a Heritage Management Plan for
the future of the management and protection of
the engraved boulders.
The Department undertakes regular inspection
and maintenance visits at the Compound.
Remediation works at the Compound
commenced in late May 2014, representing a
major milestone in addressing the shortcomings
of previous management arrangements for this
important location. This initiative represents
a strong and productive relationship where
Traditional Owners, government and industry have
worked together to achieve a positive outcome to
better look after Aboriginal heritage.

In 2014-15, the Department will administer a
heritage grants program, Preserving our Aboriginal
Sites, which will be open to not-for-profit
organisations seeking funding to preserve and
protect important and significant Aboriginal sites in
Western Australia. This initiative was informed by
feedback from Traditional Owners who attended
the Department’s regional heritage forums held
over the past 12 months.
The intended benefit of this program includes
creating economic development opportunities for
Aboriginal organisations, particularly in
regional areas.

Protecting Aboriginal sites by
improving in-house compliance
capacity, planned auditing and
improving heritage information.
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Aboriginal Heritage
Heritage Compliance Program
The Department’s Strategic Framework
2012-2014 outlined the adoption of the
Department’s new approach to heritage
management, which included regional heritage
service delivery. This includes the placement
of designated heritage staff in the regions and
training them in compliance and audit procedures.
In 2013-14, the average time to complete an initial
assessment of reported allegations of breach of
the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (Heritage Act)
was reduced to 2.35 days, improving on the
2.8 days average in the past financial year.
There were 50 reports of a potential breach of the
Heritage Act received during the year. At year
end, there were six matters still under
active investigation.
All section 18 Consents, section 16 Permits,
Regulation 10 Permits and Program of Works
Orders are subject to audit. Sixty heritage audits
were completed in 2013-14, six of which resulted
in compliance investigations.

KIMBERLEY

8
PILBARA

17

MID WEST

6

TOTAL
62
GOLDFIELDS

9

METRO
-WHEATBELT

17

SOUTHERN

5

A balanced suite of reforms that
will satisfy the needs of those
who work with the Aboriginal
Heritage Act 1972 and provide
greater protection, certainty,
fairness and consistency.

20
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Aboriginal Heritage
Aboriginal Heritage Reform
The Heritage Act was the first legislation in the
country to protect sacred sites and to combine
the protection of sacred sites with heritage sites.
However, it has become evident that elements of
the Heritage Act are no longer fit for purpose.
		
This year, the Department continued its work
to progress transparency and uniformity in
the application of the Heritage Act through a
complementary suite of legislative, regulatory and
administrative reforms.
On 11 June 2014, the Hon Peter Collier MLC,
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs, announced a
proposed series of reforms to the Heritage
Act and released the draft Aboriginal Heritage
Amendment Bill 2014 (the Bill) for public
comment.

These reforms complement and reinforce
administrative reforms the Department has
implemented over recent years, to protect
Aboriginal heritage, while balancing the various
economic and environmental interests and overall
policy directions of the State.
Since the release of the draft Bill, the Department’s
Senior Executive has travelled to regional locations
to provide briefings and consult on the draft
Bill. The Department is currently developing a
complementary set of drafting instructions to
enact amendments to the Aboriginal Heritage
Regulations 1974. It is intended that extensive
regional consultation will be undertaken with
Aboriginal stakeholders in the development of
the Regulations.

Providing consistent heritage
information, advice and a key
contact point for stakeholders.

Office of the Chief Heritage Officer
The effective balance between the Department’s
Aboriginal heritage responsibilities and the State’s
economic priorities require the efficient provision of
consistent information and advice to stakeholders
through a central key contact point.
The Office of the Chief Heritage Officer improves
the effectiveness of the Department’s Heritage
operations through integrating regional heritage
service delivery and central office heritage
management.
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Aboriginal Heritage
Aboriginal Heritage and Native Title Industry Liaison Committee
The Aboriginal Heritage and Native Title Industry
Liaison Committee (AHNTILC) was established in
2012 as a central forum to improve the dialogue
between government and industry in relation to
heritage and Native Title policy and practice.
In 2013-14, the Department continued to provide
secretariat support to AHNTILC, which met three
times during the year. The meetings facilitated
information exchange and discussion on a range
of issues, including the proposed amendments
to the Heritage Act, industry proposed
possible amendments or alternative procedural
arrangements, the Native Title Amendment Bill,
and proposals to facilitate resolutions of Native
Title and land access matters.

Aboriginal people and organisations involved in
the ownership and control of Aboriginal heritage
through regular regional and local forums with
cultural authorities.
Heritage Forums
It is imperative that the Department effectively
engages the Aboriginal community to improve
the quality of Aboriginal heritage information
and enable the State’s Aboriginal heritage to be
protected and preserved.
The purpose of the Department’s heritage forums
is to increase the involvement of Aboriginal people
and key Aboriginal organisations in the ownership
and control of Aboriginal heritage.
In 2013-14, eight heritage forums were held
in regional centres across the State, including
Carnarvon, Bunbury, Collie, Mt Magnet, Wagin,
Esperance and Bidyadanga.
The forums are structured to inform and consult
with Aboriginal communities and key stakeholders
on heritage reforms, compliance and regional
priorities for site management and protection.
Similar forums are planned for the remainder
of 2014.
22

Goombaragin. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.

Aboriginal Heritage

Wagin Heritage Forum
16-17 March 2014
The Department facilitated a two-day forum in
Wagin which focussed on building partnerships
to achieve heritage outcomes at a local level.
Attendees included members of the Noongar
community from Wagin and Dumbleyung, the
South West Aboriginal Land and Sea Council,
Water Corporation and the Shire of Wagin.
The forum showcased successful heritage
projects in the region and acknowledged the
success of the Wagin Lakes Project in the 1990s.
The forum also highlighted aspirations and
management needs for Puntapin Rock, a granite
rock feature with major cultural values just east
of Wagin. A site visit formed the basis of an
Aboriginal heritage management plan to be
drafted. The new plan will be developed for further
consultation with Elders during the
coming months.

The forum also addressed the issue of repatriation
of a partial collection of Ancestral remains from
Boyarine, 23 kilometers south of Wagin, which
were disturbed by road works in 1938. Key points
for the reburial of the Boyarine remains were
agreed, as well as the identification of several
other Noongar families who should be included,
which is the first stage to repatriating remains
to Country.

Streamlining administration
systems and processes,
improving the effectiveness of
decision making.

Wagin Heritage Forum (16-17 March 2014).
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Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee (ACMC)
The ACMC is established under section 28 of the
Heritage Act as the specialist heritage advisory
body to the Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for
Aboriginal Affairs. The functions of the ACMC
include evaluating, on behalf of the community,
the importance of places and objects alleged
to be associated with Aboriginal people and
providing advice to the Hon Peter Collier MLC,
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on all Aboriginal
heritage matters across the State. The ACMC
also considers applications made by landowners
under section 18 of the Heritage Act to use land
on which Aboriginal sites and objects are located
and provides recommendations to the Hon Peter
Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs in
relation to them.
The ACMC assessed 1,055 Aboriginal heritage
places in 2013-14. Of these, 134 (13 per cent)
were determined to be sites to which section 5 of
the Heritage Act applies.

Sections 18 and 16 applications
During 2013-14, the ACMC held 11 meetings and considered 72 Heritage Act section 18 applications,
50 per cent (to April 2014) of which were completed within the 70 day target timeframe (a decrease
of 25 per cent from last year) and 97 per cent were granted consent. Twelve Heritage Act section 16
applications were considered and approved.

ACMC approvals
2013-14
Section 18
Applications received
56
Applications considered by ACMC
72
Applications approved
73

Section 16
9
12
12

Note: Not all Section 18 applications recorded above are received within the 2013-14 financial year.
There is a 70 day performance target for assessment from receipt to Ministerial decision.
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Heritage Approvals Processes
Since 2011, the Department has actively
progressed reforms aimed at improving approval
processes which will provide clarity, consistency
and transparency to all stakeholders in relation to
decision making associated with Aboriginal sites,
the Heritage Act, section 18 applications, section
16 applications, requests for information and
advice on Program of Works (PoW) *.

In 2013-14, benefits resulting from the
administrative improvements included:
•
•
•
•

better alignment of teams that ensure the
provision of consistent heritage advice and
site assessment;
delivery of heritage advice for approximately
1,695 requests received;
improved electronic application forms and a
new ability to lodge the forms online; and
delivery of information and advice to 140
requests on PoW pursuant to the Mining Act
1978 during the year.

* Program of Works refer to applications submitted to the Department of Mines and Petroleum (DMP) to undertake exploration
activities and/or low impact mining operations. DMP requires applicants to seek advice about proponents’ responsibilities
under the Heritage Act.

Site Assessments
There are currently 35,000 records of heritage
places maintained on the Department’s database,
approximately 14,000 of which are entries on
the Register of places and objects (the Register).
Since the 1970s, the administration of the
Heritage Act has evolved to become largely reliant
on Aboriginal site identification surveys and reports
developed by consultants containing information
about sites for the Register.
This has resulted in an inaccurate Register, a
cumbersome and burdensome process for
stakeholders, and a lack of confidence and
certainty in the administration of the Heritage Act.
The Department’s Site Assessment team aims
to improve the information on the Register by
ensuring that all heritage information submitted
to the Department is subject to assessment
processes consistent with the requirements of the
Heritage Act.

In 2013-14, a new heritage information
submission form with user instructions was
developed to capture information specific to
section 5 of the Heritage Act. Guidelines to assist
all stakeholders in understanding the requirements
of the Heritage Act were also published on the
Department’s website. These documents aim
to improve stakeholders' understanding of the
requirements of the Heritage Act in the protection
and preservation of Aboriginal heritage in
Western Australia.
During the year, the Department also conducted
desktop preliminary assessment of 2,248
unassessed heritage places.

Meeting stakeholder information
needs by improving access
to heritage systems, including
internet portals that enable
electronic lodgement and tracking
of statutory applications.
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Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement Program
The Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement
Program (AHELP) began as a stand-alone
information technology project to improve the
Department’s heritage business processes.
The idea had been identified for several years
within the Department and gained momentum
with the Government’s commitment to industry to
streamline approvals processes.

On 5 May 2014, the Department successfully
launched Phase 1 of AHELP, which enables
applicants to submit and track land use
applications online, supports more efficient
application processing, and provides a platform
for the continued alignment of statutory approval
systems and processes with the DMP, Department
of Planning and Landgate.

Project Milestones
Project Milestones

Milestone
Date

Percentage
completed

Schedule
Status

Completed Date

Scanning 10,000 site files

30 March 2014

100

Complete

28 February 2014

Section 18 notices and Heritage
Information Submission forms to
be online with internal
application tracking

30 June 2014

100

Complete

5 May 2014

Build Aboriginal Heritage
Register and prepare summary
sheets for all registered sites

30 September
2014

35

On target

Go live for AHELP Phase 1

30 June 2014

100

Complete

5 May 2014

Phase 2 - scanning 25,000
site files

30 June 2014

100

Complete

10 May 2014

The AHELP system is on track to deliver more benefits in 2014-15, including:
• a reduction in costs and processing time to industry and government in relation to land
use applications;
• improved accessibility to Aboriginal heritage information for all stakeholders; and
• closer integration across government applications.

Senior Aboriginal loremen from the Wongatha and Ngaanyatjarra groups: Greg Stubbs, Dinny Smith, Wilton
Grant and Aubrey Lynch, with Jeremy Elliott, Director, Office of the Chief Heritage Officer (6 June 2014).
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Repatriation of Ancestral Remains
In line with the heritage reform commitment to
build stronger relationships with its Aboriginal
stakeholders, the Department in 2013 established
an Ancestral Remains Repatriation Program (the
Program) to coordinate the appropriate return
to Country of more than 480 sets of Ancestral
remains, in partnership with Aboriginal people.
Administration of the Program involves the
Department working with Traditional Owners, the
Western Australian Museum and other agencies
to develop strategies to repatriate remains and
manage them in accordance with the relevant
State and Commonwealth legislation.
Since the Program commenced in 2013,
approximately 65 sets of Ancestral remains have
been returned to Country in a number of locations
across the State. More than 16 sets of Aboriginal
human remains have been repatriated in the last
12 months, which involved working with Traditional
Owners in Dongara, Munda, Weeli Wolli, Bremer
Bay and Albany.

Repatriation work during the year included the
repatriation of the Fontaine collection, which
comprises a significant set of 17 mostly secret
and sacred men’s objects from Laverton. In March
2014, 14 of the objects were returned to the
loremen and placed in safekeeping. On 6 June
2014, a ceremony, attended by the Department
and senior loremen from the Wongatha and
Ngaanyatjarra groups, was conducted to
celebrate the handover of the remaining three
larger objects. All 17 objects have now been
stored in purpose built containers to be looked
after and used in important ceremonies.

Returning Aboriginal Ancestral
remains that are in storage around
the State back to Country, in
partnership with Aboriginal people.

Aaron Rayner, Chief Heritage Officer with Senior
Aboriginal loremen from the Wongatha and Ngaanyatjarra
groups (6 June 2014).
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Lake Saide Reserve
On 18 May 2014, Noongar people from the
Albany area and Departmental representatives
attended a ceremony to rebury Ancestral remains
at a location 35 kilometres west of the township.
The City of Albany had given consent for the
remains to be reburied within a Reserve that it
managed. A joint Works Agreement for the future
management of the Reserve was developed by
the City and the Department in consultation with
the Noongar community in the lead up to the
burial. The Works Agreement aims to protect the
cultural heritage within the Reserve. The burial
location will be registered as a site under the
Heritage Act.
A plaque identifying the area as a burial site was
installed very near the location of the grave. The
day was completed with afternoon tea at the local
community hall.
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Reburial of Ancestral remains at Lake Saide
Reserve (18 May 2014).
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Since my appointment as Chair of the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) in July
2010, it has been a rewarding challenge to lead, and be fully supported by,
the ALT members.
It has been a privilege to work alongside a group of highly respected and
committed members with varied expertise from across the State. I would
like to take this opportunity to thank Ms Irene Stainton, Deputy Chair, and
Ms Irene Davey especially for their commitment and ongoing support over
our term of appointment from 2010 to 2014.
The ALT has a statutory responsibility under the Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority Act 1972 (AAPA Act) to carry out functions, hold and manage
land, undertake consultations, and generally represent the interests of
Aboriginal people in relation to the ALT estate. Some of its day to day
responsibilities in relation to the effective management of the estate
range from compliance with statutory responsibilities as a land holder
to considering and approving applications for the use of the estate for
community, local enterprise and business purposes, including:
•
•
•
•
•

transit and mining permits;
special rail licenses;
the granting of sandalwood licenses;
building and infrastructure development in communities and outstations; and
leases and sub leases.

There are also significant animal welfare issues, best illustrated by an incident at the end of October 2012,
when approximately 100 feral horses were stuck in mud and perished near the Balgo community. This
ultimately led to a well-planned cull in 2013 that not only addressed an ongoing property management
compliance issue for the ALT but eased pressure on the eco-system, with the full support of the Royal Society
for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, Department of Agriculture and Food WA and, most importantly, the
local Aboriginal community.
The views of local communities and groups are a key factor when considering matters and, consequently, the
ALT aims to regularly meet in remote and regional areas. The ALT travelled to Broome, Ardyaloon and Beagle
Bay for regional meetings in the last 12 months. In Ardyaloon, a community forum was arranged where a
number of issues were raised and discussed around the current and potential future uses of ALT divestment
for the Bardi Jawi community.
The ALT has also built on its relationships across government to deliver better outcomes for Aboriginal people.
In January 2014, the ALT met with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’s Land Approvals and Native
Title Unit to approve the strategy for the divestment of the ALT estate.
In February 2014, the ALT, represented by Ms Irene Davey and Mr Patrick Green, transferred a unique
pocket of land, 180 hectares, located at Bidan, midway between Broome and Derby, to the Bidan Aboriginal
Corporation. The Bidan Community, through this land, aspires to further develop the social and economic
independence of the local community members.
It has often been a challenging and complex environment for the ALT to consider when making decisions,
but through support from the Department and a determined resolve by my fellow ALT members to improve
opportunities for Aboriginal people, we have been able to make some difficult decisions, address some
complex issues and forge a clearer path ahead for the ALT and Aboriginal people.
I wish the new Chairperson, Mr Shane Hamilton, and the ALT the best of luck in its continuing work towards
land divestment and increasing economic development opportunities for Aboriginal Western Australians.
Clinton Wolf
Chair - Aboriginal Lands Trust
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The Department is responsible for administering
the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972
(AAPA Act).
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) is the statutory
board convened under the AAPA Act which
advises the Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for
Aboriginal Affairs on issues relating to the
ALT estate.

During the year, the ALT met five times and
passed 56 resolutions, including:
•

approval of two lease extensions over portions
of the estate to help maximise the economic
and social benefit for Aboriginal people;

•

endorsement of an interim development
approval process for ALT land and support for
the establishment of a Government taskforce
to coordinate the divestment of the ALT
estate; and

•

a range of matters, including supporting
the granting of sandalwood licenses, and
approving Building Permit Applications for
the building of a multi-function facility at
Wuggubun community (on the Doon Doon
pastoral lease) and a new school at
Warmun Community.

The Department has a number of primary
functions, including:
•

the effective and efficient day-to-day
management of the ALT estate;

•

providing advice and support to the ALT in
relation to management of these lands; and

•

facilitating the transfer of ALT land to
Aboriginal people.

The ALT estate comprises approximately
24 million hectares, or 9.65 per cent of the
State’s land.
This consists of 312 parcels of land, being
249 reserves (80 of which are Part III
reserves), 49 Freehold properties, 8 general
purpose leases and 6 pastoral leases.

Cockburn Range. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Mining Permits
Mining access permits are required for any
mining activity (surveying and/or marking out of
tenements, fossicking, prospecting, exploring and
mining, or for travelling through such Aboriginal
reserves to access mining tenements) on any
Aboriginal reserve subject to Part III of the
AAPA Act.

Transit Permits
Transit permits are required to enter and pass
through Aboriginal reserves subject to Part III of
the AAPA Act.
In 2013-14, the Department issued 4,348 transit
permits.

In 2013-14, the ALT recommended the issue of
seven mining entry permits to enable mining and
exploration activities where agreements have
been reached with the Native Title parties and
communities.

Improving service delivery to
maximise economic and social
opportunities by working with
local government authorities and
other stakeholders to include
communities in town services and
planning in key locations.

Town Based Reserves
There are 38 defined Town Based Reserves
(TBRs) in Western Australia, occupied by
approximately 3,000 people. Many of the
Aboriginal TBRs across the State lie adjacent
to prosperous regional towns and, although in
close proximity to town based services, are often
marginalised from these services.
This year, the Department contributed to the
development of a strategic policy framework for
whole-of-government decision making in relation
to the future of Aboriginal TBRs in Western
Australia. The Department also collaborated with
the Pilbara Development Commission and the
Department of Housing to progress a business
case for the transition of up to five Pilbara TBRs:
Bindi Bindi, Parnpajinya, Irrungadji, Cheeditha and
Tjalka Boorda, as part of the Pilbara Cities project.
It is intended that the Pilbara TBRs will be used as
a case model for the transition of TBRs across
the State.

Newman. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.

Maximising economic viability
of Aboriginal Lands Trust held
pastoral leases by transferring
ownership, assessing leases,
reforming land use for pastoral
purposes, investing in infrastructure
and creating employment and
training opportunities.
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Pastoral Lease Enterprises
The ALT holds six pastoral leases under the Land
Administration Act 1997 (Land Act) across the
north of Western Australia, including Doon Doon,
Glen Hill, Billiluna and Lake Gregory in the East
Kimberley region, as well as Pippingarra and
Walagunya in the Pilbara region.
The Doon Doon Station and Glen Hill Station
pastoral leases have been sub-leased to
Aboriginal pastoral corporations.
All pastoral leases, including the ALT held
leases, expire on 30 June 2015, with renewal
being subject to assessment by the Pastoral
Lands Board and Minister for Lands. Historically,
ALT pastoral leases have suffered from poor
management and limited infrastructure, leading to
a risk that the leases will not be renewed.
The Department is a member of the Aboriginal
Pastoral Renewals Working Group whose
membership includes the Indigenous Land
Corporation, Department of Agriculture and Food
WA, Department of Lands and Department of
Regional Development (Chair). The group will
oversee the preparation of management plans
and development plans on Aboriginal pastoral
leases to ensure compliance with lease renewal
conditions prior to July 2015.

In 2013-14, the Department conducted improved
pastoral management of the Lake Gregory and
Billiluna leases, including the successful control
of a large feral horse population. This allows the
leases to be run as viable cattle operations while
providing sustainable training and employment
opportunities for local Aboriginal people. The
ALT and the Department have convened a Lake
Gregory Working Group, which is investigating
future management options for the leases,
including ongoing feral horse management.
Divestment opportunities involving Traditional
Owners are also being identified for all ALT
pastoral leases.

Maximising revenue for the
management of the Aboriginal
Lands Trust estate by
building capacity of Aboriginal
communities to engage with
the resource industry to unlock
economic opportunities.

Mining Rents and Royalties
Mining rents are paid by mining tenement
holders to the State on an annual basis for a
range of mining activities, including prospecting
and exploration. The ALT receives Mining Rents
and Royalties (MRR) monies annually from the
Department of Mines and Petroleum based on
a percentage of the revenue paid by mining
companies undertaking mining activities on Part III
Aboriginal reserves.

MRR monies assist the ALT in management of the
ALT estate; however, fall significantly short of what
is required. The Department is working with the
Department of Mines and Petroleum and the ALT
to progress the development of a revised MRR
policy as it relates to the ALT estate.

Changing tenure of land holdings to enable Aboriginal
corporations to undertake economic and other identified
activities through the conversion of Part III Aboriginal reserves
and other tenure types in priority locations.
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Land Tenure Facilitation
The divestment of the ALT estate to appropriate
Aboriginal ownership has the potential to provide
improved economic and social outcomes for
Aboriginal people. An integral part of divestment
is working to ensure that land is transferred with
appropriate forms of tenure and in accordance
with State policy and legislative requirements.
The Department is pursuing ALT divestment and
land tenure reform proposals through ongoing
initiatives and in consultation with Native Title
parties across the State. This includes examining
ALT divestment opportunities arising from the
South West Noongar Native Title claim, the
Bardi Jawi Native Title determination area on
the Dampier Peninsula, and areas of the ALT
estate covered by the Kimberley Science and
Conservation Strategy.
During the year, the ALT and the Department
facilitated the successful transfer of four properties
in Bidan (West Kimberley), Ngaanyatjarra
Lands and Wiluna to Aboriginal ownership. The
Department also assisted with the transfer of
Crown land (under section 83 of the Land Act)
in Roebourne as part of the Ngarluma Aboriginal
Sustainable Housing program.

Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs
at the transfer of property in Bidan (West Kimberley)
to Aboriginal ownership (7 February 2014).

Aligning divestment of the Aboriginal Lands Trust
estate with existing and future Native Title priority
determined areas by examining land holdings and
facilitating divestment through agreements.
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Native Title Settlements
The Department seeks to align the divestment
of the ALT estate with existing and future Native
Title priority determination areas by examining
land holdings and facilitating divestment though
agreements and other Native Title settlements
across Western Australia.
The Department works closely with the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC),
the lead agency for the settlement of Native Title
matters across the State. On 5 July 2013, the
State Government made an offer to the South
West Aboriginal Land and Sea Council (SWALSC)
in return for the resolution of all Native Title claims
in the South West region. An important element
of the State’s final offer is the transfer of up to
320,000 hectares of Crown land in multiple
parcels to a Noongar Boodja Trust to form a land
base to provide economic, social and cultural
benefits to the Noongar people.

This year, the Department continued its
involvement in key negotiations led by DPC for
the settlement of the South West Native Title
claims, as well as ongoing negotiations for the
Bunuba, Martu and Spinifex Indigenous Land
Use Agreements (ILUA). The Department also
participated in DPC-led discussions involving
parcels of ALT land, including the Kimberley
Science and Conservation Strategy, Bidyadanga
community ILUA, and Fitzroy Crossing Townsite
ILUA.

Preparing land holding entities to
manage land into the future by
building governance, planning,
economic development and
strategic capacity.

Capacity Building Land Holding Entities
Historically, Aboriginal groups have not possessed
the capacity to effectively hold and manage land.
Specific programs and support is required to help
develop this capacity.
In order to facilitate the establishment of land
holding entities and improve the governance
capacity of existing entities, the Department has
provided a range of funding and assistance,
including:
•

•

•
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a grant of $109,000 for the Bardi Jawi
Governance project to develop appropriate
governance arrangements between the
various Bardi land holding community
organisations;
working with the Kimberley Land Council to
facilitate the establishment of a land holding
body for Native Title groups with interests in
the Halls Creek townsite;
facilitating the development of Stage 2 of the
Yagan Memorial Park through engagement
with the City of Swan and SWALSC;

•
•

provision of a grant to the Bunuba Prescribed
Body Corporate to establish land holding
entities and governance structures; and
provision of $120,000 for the Yawuru
Population and Housing survey to assist the
Yawuru Native Title holders in the development
of an appropriate land and social housing
investment strategy.

Aboriginal rock art, Kununurra.
Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Joint Ventures
In 2013-14, DPC and the Department established
a Divestment Taskforce to bring together a range
of expertise in land management development and
planning to advise the ALT and the Department.

The Department is also developing a Government
strategic Aboriginal land use policy by
collaborating with other key land holding bodies,
sharing asset registers and investigating joint land
management options.

The Department and the ALT identify the use of
joint venture arrangements as an effective way
to manage and divest the ALT estate. Lessons
learned from the successful Gnangara joint
venture relating to the identification, assessment
and facilitation of future joint venture proposals
will be incorporated into the operation of the
Divestment Taskforce.

Leveraging opportunities to
deliver Aboriginal employment
and training and increasing
employment within the
public sector.

Economic Participation
The Department has a key role in coordinating and
facilitating the significant work occurring across
the State Government to improve Aboriginal
economic participation outcomes.
The Western Australian Aboriginal Economic
Participation Strategy 2012 – 2016 (the Strategy)
aims to increase the potential for Aboriginal
people to participate fully in the State’s economy,
to strengthen Aboriginal culture and society,
and to ensure Aboriginal people have the same
opportunities in life as non-Aboriginal people.
A total of 29 State Government agencies are
involved with the implementation of the Strategy,
with the Department leading 11 initiatives.

In March 2014, the Department produced the
Strategy’s Progress Report, which highlighted
that out of the 69 initiatives, five have been
completed; 63 are in progress; and one is on
hold. Achievements include the establishment
of the Aboriginal Business Directory WA, State
Government Procurement Reform and the
implementation of the National Partnership
Agreement on Indigenous Economic Participation.

Girlooloo Tours Mimbi Caves. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Government Procurement Reforms
Collaboration between the Department and the
Department of Finance successfully enabled an
amendment to the State Supply Commission
Board’s Open and Effective Competition Policy.
This amendment came into effect on November
2012 and allowed public authorities to negotiate
directly with registered Aboriginal businesses for
goods and services up to the value of $150,000.
On 27 June 2014, the State Supply Commission
announced a further amendment to the Open and
Effective Competition Policy that allows public
authorities to procure goods and services directly
from a registered Aboriginal business up to the
value of $250,000. Additionally, procurements in
excess of $250,000 from a registered Aboriginal
business may be undertaken if the Accountable
Authority considers that circumstances exist to
support the procurement being undertaken.
The aim of the amendment is to enhance the
opportunities for Aboriginal businesses to secure
business and contracts with public authorities and
support the sustainability and growth of
Aboriginal businesses.
Public authorities are only able to purchase directly
from Aboriginal businesses that are registered
on the Aboriginal Business Directory WA (the
Directory), a free on-line register available to all
Aboriginal businesses in all industry sectors.
To register on the Directory, the business must
be at least 50 per cent owned by an Aboriginal
interest and the Aboriginal interest must also be
represented in the management and operations of
the trading entity.

Since the Directory’s official launch in October
2012, more than 220 Aboriginal businesses are
now registered on the site. In total, the site has
received more than 45,000 visits from about
14,000 unique users, and company profiles have
been viewed on more than 10,000 occasions.
In 2013-14, a number of sponsoring partners
were secured to support the promotion, marketing
and administration of the Directory, which
demonstrates the high level of goodwill that
exists towards building the Aboriginal business
sector. The initiative attracted $52,000 in private
sponsorship and approximately $20,000 in free
legal advice provided to registered Aboriginal
businesses by law firm Jackson McDonald.
In June 2014, the Directory established a
Facebook page to raise awareness and promote
the Directory within the Aboriginal Business Sector
and, in turn, increase registration numbers on the
Directory. The Facebook page will also provide
a means for the Aboriginal community to receive
updates on the Directory, small business sector
news, services available, workshops and business
opportunities and allow Aboriginal businesses
to promote and showcase their products and
services.
The Directory has been nominated for the Institute
of Public Administration Australia WA Achievement
Awards and has also been shortlisted for the
Premier’s Awards 2014 in the category of
Improving Indigenous Outcomes.

Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Accountable Government
The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC)
utilises the skills, expertise and perspectives of 12 key State
Government agencies with the common goal of improving
wellbeing for Aboriginal people in Western Australia. This year,
we saw the addition of the Mental Health Commission to the
AACC, which I believe will bring about a much needed focus
and action on Aboriginal mental health issues, including suicide
and self harm.
The AACC employs a whole-of-government approach to
address the key issues faced by Aboriginal people and
develop cross-agency strategies that reduce duplication
and ensure sustainable investment decisions. This year, the
AACC coordinated responses in eight priority locations, being
Roebourne, Oombulgurri, Burringurrah, Laverton, Warburton,
Meekatharra, Ngaanyatjarra Lands and Kalumburu.
The AACC’s involvement in these communities aids
collaboration between the community, government and nongovernment organisations to work towards common goals and priority issues. This work is heavily
supported by the Department’s regional offices, which are able to provide local knowledge and support
for critical responses. This tailored community approach continues to result in a number of positive
outcomes for the communities, including the re-establishment of the community store in Laverton and
the deployment of an officer into the Kalumburu community, which led to improved functioning and
community safety.
In September 2013, the AACC established the Kalumburu Working Party (KWP) with the overarching
purpose of coordinating State Government effort and planning in Kalumburu. The KWP is chaired by
the Director General of the Department for Child Protection and Family Support, and aims to improve
social and emotional wellbeing through a coordinated approach to social and
community governance.
The AACC has an expanded function to support the work of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee (AACSC) and the Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs.
In 2013-14, the AACC met four times and progressed the establishment of five issues-based AACC
sub-committees focussing on Aboriginal Health and Mental Health; Education; Regional and Remote
Communities; Economic Development and Governance; and Family, Youth and Children.
The success and achievements of the AACC over the past year have only been possible as a
result of the continued commitment of its members and their agencies, as well as the Chair of the
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council who is represented on the Committee. I would like to
acknowledge and thank my colleagues for their valuable contribution this year.

Cliff Weeks
Chair
Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee

Driving better coordination across
Government and improved
collaboration with Aboriginal leaders
and the non-government sector.
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Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet Sub-Committee
On 17 April 2013, the State Government
established the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet
Sub-Committee (AACSC) to drive better
coordination and collaboration, reduce duplication
and improve access to services in Aboriginal
affairs. The AACSC’s function includes setting
policy directions and ensuring coordination across
Government in Aboriginal affairs.
Membership of the AACSC includes the Minister
for Aboriginal Affairs (Chair), the Deputy Premier,
the Minister for Mental Health, the Minister for
Regional Development and the Minister for Police.

During the year, the Department worked in
conjunction with the Department of the Premier
and Cabinet to provide secretariat support to
the AACSC. In 2013-14, AACSC met eight
times and considered 25 submissions from
State Government departments outlining key
Aboriginal affairs reform items, including the South
West Native Title Settlement Offer, legislative
options to facilitate Aboriginal school attendance
and retention and approval to draft additional
amendments to the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972.

Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee
The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee
(AACC) is the statutory committee convened
under section 19 of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority Act 1972 (AAPA Act). The AACC
employs a collaborative whole-of-government
approach to address the key issues faced by
Aboriginal people and develop cross-agency
strategies and initiatives that reduce duplication
and ensure sustainable investment decisions.

Each of these sub-committees includes a
designated lead agency, with the Director General
from each lead agency acting as the Chair of
the sub-committee. In order to ensure Aboriginal
engagement and the cultural appropriateness of
the work of the sub-committees, each
sub-committee has Aboriginal representation from
at least one statutory Aboriginal advisory group.
The AACC met four times in 2013-14.

AACC membership comprises the Directors
General of the Departments of Aboriginal Affairs
(Chair); Premier and Cabinet; Treasury; and Health;
the Department for Child Protection and Family
Support; Western Australia Police; the Mental
Health Commission; and the Chairperson of the
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council.
Following the establishment of AACSC, the AACC
has an expanded function to support the work of
the AACSC through the provision of policy advice
and implementation.
In 2013-14, following AACSC endorsement, the
AACC formed five issues-based sub-committees
on Aboriginal Education, Aboriginal Health and
Mental Health, Aboriginal Regional and Remote
Communities, Aboriginal Economic Development
and Governance, and Aboriginal Families, Youth
and Children.
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Aligning investment decisions
with agreed State planning
frameworks through community
viability assessments of access
to services and facilities and
risks to health and wellbeing.

Accountable Government
Aboriginal Communities Investment Planning
There are approximately 330 communities
identified as remote within Western Australia, the
majority of which are situated within the
Kimberley region.
Since 2008, the AACC has sought the
development of a consistent whole-of-government
policy framework to inform government investment
priorities in remote Aboriginal communities. In
2012, the Department progressed several aspects
of this, including collecting key data sets around

demography, services and infrastructure, as well
as mapping government roles and responsibilities.
Subsequent to the establishment of the AACSC,
the AACC reassigned the development of
the framework to the AACC Regional and
Remote Communities Sub-committee, led by
the Department of Housing. The Department
continued to support the development of the
policy, through the provision of expertise in data
on remote Aboriginal communities.

Department of Aboriginal Affairs Data Services
Since 2012, the Department has been
coordinating the sharing of datasets relevant
to planning and decision making with regards
to Western Australian remote Aboriginal
communities. The project utilises Landgate’s
Shared Land Information Platform to host a
catalogue of more than 90 datasets, which
agencies access securely through their geospatial
information systems.
In the past year, key achievements of the project
have been the expansion of the catalogue to
include four additional datasets on Native Title as
well as developing cross-agency collaboration to
improve data on the number of remote Aboriginal

communities and Aboriginal town based reserves.
As a result, the Department worked closely with
the Department of Housing to identify that there
are now 205 permanently occupied remote
Aboriginal communities, which is lower than
previous estimated figure of 221. The main reason
for the decrease in numbers was due to improved
information, which identified that many of the small
remote Aboriginal communities in the State are
now only occupied seasonally.
Additional data is currently being collected to
refine and further substantiate these estimates.

Assisting the Aboriginal not-for-profit sector
to increase government service delivery
contracts by developing alliances and
creating mutually beneficial opportunities
within the not-for-profit sector.
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Aboriginal Not-For-Profit State Alliance
The Aboriginal Not-For-Profit State Alliance
project’s aim is to investigate not-for-profit
State alliance models that will nominate priority
areas and influence competitive processes and
strategies for funding and service delivery to
Aboriginal people.
The Midwest Aboriginal Organisations Alliance
(MAOA) is an Aboriginal initiated, prioritised and
led organisation with goals to build capacity and
create sustainable development for Aboriginal
people in the Midwest region. MAOA comprises
15 Aboriginal organisation leaders aiming to
work collaboratively with community, industry
and government partners on priority Aboriginal
community issues.
In 2013-14, the Department provided $40,000
in funding to MAOA for administration costs. The
Department also provided secretariat support to
MAOA, including organising networking meetings
with government and non-government agencies
and developing memorandums of understanding
with the Western Australian Centre for Rural
Health and the City of Greater Geraldton.

Girlooloo Tours Mimbi Caves.
Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.

Aboriginal Community Critical Response Fund
In 2012, Cabinet approved the allocation of
$10 million of Royalties for Regions funding to
support the implementation and operation of
the Aboriginal Community Critical Response
Fund (ACCRF), formerly known as the Aboriginal
Community Emergency Response Fund.
ACCRF allows the State Government to respond
efficiently and effectively to critical emergencies
in remote Aboriginal communities. In October
2013, the AACSC endorsed the reprioritisation
of ACCRF processes and eligibility to fund an
emerging or critical crisis, and modification of the
application process to allow for an
immediate response.

In 2013-14, seven projects were funded through
the ACCRF totalling $734,029. Key outcomes
from the projects included:
•

•

•

funding for the deployment of an officer into
the Kalumburu community led to improved
functioning and safety, improved coordination
of service delivery and community stability;
funded the Wunan Money Mentor program
in Kununurra that assists Aboriginal people
transition into employment and move towards
independence and home ownership; and
funded the Broome HYPE project, which
supports at-risk Aboriginal children and young
people who are present on the street at night
through youth outreach street patrols.

On 28 January 2014, the administrative
responsibility for ACCRF was transferred from the
Department to the Department of
Regional Development.
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Be Deadly Online – cyber (smart:)
In 2010-11, a series of escalating violence across
the Midwest and Gascoyne regions raised
concerns in the community. It was identified that
many instances of violence were directly caused
by misuse of social media platforms, such
as Facebook.

Tackling cyberbullying, sexting and digital footprint
management, Be Deadly Online responds
to Indigenous community leaders’ concerns
about the impact of social media on family and
communities. It offers positive, practical advice to
help young people online.

The Department was instrumental in the
formation of the Midwest Anti-Violence Action
Group (MAVAG), coordinating a range of State
Government agencies and the Commonwealth
Indigenous Coordination Centre to address
community violence in the region.
In 2013-14, MAVAG engaged Telstra and
Facebook to discuss the issue of social
media misuse. In response, the Australian
Communications and Media Authority and Telstra
formed the Midwest Gascoyne Social Media
Aboriginal Reference Group and developed the
Indigenous section of the Cyber Smart website,
Be Deadly Online, that was launched on
4 April 2014.
Be Deadly Online is Australia’s first comprehensive
package of cyber safety resources for
Indigenous communities.

Better service delivery to
Aboriginal people in regional
locations through intelligence
gathering, interagency alignment
and community engagement.

DAA staff members: Corinne Fogarty, Shaye Hayden, Cliff Weeks,
Beverley Rebbeck and Liza Ugle.
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Regional Coordination
The Department maintains five regional offices
(East and West Kimberley, Pilbara, Midwest/
Gascoyne and the Goldfields) to support
Aboriginal people residing in these regional and
remote areas of Western Australia.
The regional offices maintain a high degree of
situational awareness of the area of responsibility
as it relates to Aboriginal people, and support the
AACSC and the AACC through the identification of
issues and provision of comprehensive reporting.
Regional officers also actively participate in
interagency forums, committees and working
groups relevant to Aboriginal affairs across
the regions.

Girlooloo Tours Mimbi Caves.
Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.

Remote Service Delivery National Partnership Agreement
In December 2008, the Council of Australian
Governments agreed to a Remote Service Delivery
National Partnership Agreement (RSD). A central
aim of the RSD is to enable governments to work
effectively together at the local level and to provide
a single government interface in partnering with
local communities. The RSD expired on
30 June 2014.
There are four RSD priority locations in WA
(29 nationally): Halls Creek, Fitzroy Crossing,
Beagle Bay and Bardi Jawi (Ardyaloon, Djaradjin
and Lombadina). A total of 934 actions were
identified across the four locations and published
in a Local Implementation Plan as a commitment
between community, service providers
and government.

Fitzroy Crossing:
•

Halls Creek:
•
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Implementation of the Commonwealth
Government’s Remote School Attendance
Strategy, which aims to break the cycle of
non-attendance and ensure parents and
carers take responsibility for educating their
children.

Beagle Bay:
•

The RSD priorities for 2013-14 were to complete
the outstanding actions, progress land tenure
reform in each community and build capacity
of the communities through governance and
leadership initiatives. At the end of the financial
year, 849 actions (92 per cent) were completed
and the remaining 73 actions are in progress.
Key achievements in each RSD location in
2013-14 include:

Finalisation of the community’s Alcohol and
Other Drug Management Strategy and suicide
prevention workshops delivered under the
Suicide Prevention Community Action Plan.

The Jawun Indigenous Corporate Partnerships
(Jawun) builds the skills and expertise of
Aboriginal communities in the Kimberley
through the secondment of corporate
volunteers into Aboriginal organisations. In
2013-14, Jawun placed secondees with the
Beagle Bay Interim Governance Working
Group to develop documents to shape a new
governance entity, the Beagle Bay Futures
Indigenous Incorporation.

Bardi Jawi:
•

Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation received RSD
funding to establish a women’s safe house.
RSD funding also enabled the commencement
of long day care services at the Bardi Jawi
Family and Children Centre in Djarindjin.

Community Development

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow
members of the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory
Council (WAAAC) and acknowledge former member
Mr Harry Graham for their contribution to advancing the
position of Aboriginal affairs in Western Australia over the
past year. I would also like to congratulate those members
who were recently reappointed to the WAAAC for a further
12 months.
Despite improved planning and significant investment by
both the State and Commonwealth Governments, we are
still seeing significant gaps in areas like juvenile justice,
mental health and rates of suicide. There is a need for reform
in Aboriginal affairs, at all levels of Government, to improve
the delivery of services and outcomes for Aboriginal
Western Australians.
The WAAAC is pleased with the establishment of the
Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet Sub-Committee and the five-issues
based sub-committees of the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee. The sub-committees are tasked with setting policy direction and improving the coordination
and effectiveness of government investment and to address the key priority action areas in Aboriginal
affairs. Through the five-issues based sub-committees, the WAAAC has been involved in a number of
discussions that have evolved into a solid influence on social and community development issues in
the community.
The WAAAC is working with government to improve the processes and outcomes for Aboriginal
Western Australians. To assist with this process we have been planning an Aboriginal Affairs Summit.
The Summit plans to inform the development of an engagement mechanism between Aboriginal people
and government agencies, service providers, stakeholders and corporate entities that have an interest
in improving outcomes for Aboriginal people.
In 2014, I was appointed to the WA Youth Justice Board that is responsible for reducing the overrepresentation of Aboriginal youth in the youth justice system. With less than 7 per cent of WA's
population accounting for more than 77 per cent of the youth justice incarceration rate, the role of the
Board is critical in improving investment that is targeted at the front end and engages Aboriginal youth
and families in policy, program and service design and delivery.
At a national level, the WAAAC has been working to establish a formal relationship with the Prime
Minister's Indigenous Advisory Council. The WAAAC also provides advice to the Department on a range
of issues and is currently assisting with the development of a cultural competency framework, which
agencies and organisations can use to determine what they need when engaging a provider to deliver
cultural awareness training to staff.
I am looking forward to leading the WAAAC through the challenging year ahead. The outcomes of
the Summit will shape a new direction and relationship for Aboriginal affairs in WA that will empower
Aboriginal people to lead effective change.
Michael Hayden
Chair
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council
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The Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory
Council (WAAAC) is the statutory council
convened under the Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority Act 1972 (AAPA Act). It provides
advice to the Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister
for Aboriginal Affairs on matters relating to the
interests and wellbeing of Aboriginal people.

Supporting culturally appropriate
programs and activities that
improve the physical, social and
emotional wellbeing of
Aboriginal people.

This year, the WAAAC held six meetings and
engaged the Aboriginal community by seeking
feedback and providing advice on a range of
issues affecting Aboriginal people in Western
Australia. The WAAAC has commenced
preparations for the facilitation of an Aboriginal
Affairs Summit scheduled for 25-26 August 2014.

Healthy Lifestyles
The Department supports community based
initiatives that improve the physical, social and
emotional wellbeing of Aboriginal people. This
year, the Department supported the
following initiatives:
•
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$50,000 to Dumbartung Aboriginal
Corporation to develop a cultural awareness
program designed specifically for frontline
service providers that work directly with
Aboriginal people in the provision of immediate
support and intervention when dealing with
crises, such as suicide;

•

$200,000 to the Telethon Kids to assist with
the development and evaluation of the Marulu
Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Prevention
Strategy and Community Capacity Building
Program in the Fitzroy Valley; and

•

$52,000 to the Ngurra Yuldoo Aboriginal
Corporation to purchase a new bus, which
will be used primarily to provide transport for
young people to attend school and youth
diversionary programs held at the Wiluna
Community Hall and for older people to attend
medical appointments and collect
medical supplies.
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EON Thriving Communities Program
Research indicates that 19 per cent of the
Aboriginal health gap is attributable to poor diet,
particularly low fruit and vegetable intake. The
quality and availability of healthy food in remote
Aboriginal communities is often poor and well
below the standard found in urban and
regional centres.
The Department provided $100,000 in funding
to EON Foundation Inc. (EON) for its Thriving
Communities Program. Thriving Communities
is a multi-dimensional program that provides
knowledge and skills to secure local access and
consumption of fresh food in remote Aboriginal
communities in the Kimberley region.

This program is delivered across 13 communities
– Beagle Bay, Djarindjin, Lombardina, One Arm
Point, Looma, Nookanbah, Kadjina, Ngalapita,
Wangkatjungka, Warmun, Doon Doon, Kalumburu
and, most recently, Bidyadanga.
In 2013, EON established edible gardens
in nine schools in Looma, Noonkanbah,
Kandjina, Warmun, Kalumburu, Doon Doon,
Wangkatjungka, One Arm Point and Lombadina.
EON project managers visited communities
fortnightly and conducted lessons for children and
workshops for adults. Approximately 700 children
and 190 adults received regular horticulture,
cooking and health lessons.

Expanding capacity building
programs for families
and individuals.

Grant funding of $100,000 provided to the EON
Thriving Communities Program.
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Youth Diversionary Programs
The Department is committed to reducing the
over representation of Aboriginal youth in the
criminal justice system and aims to contribute to
the diversion of Aboriginal youth at risk through
supporting targeted programs that utilise sport,
economic participation and the cultural authority
of Aboriginal Elders to build the capacity and
leadership potential of Aboriginal youth.
In February 2013, the Department provided the
West Australian Football Commission (WAFC) with
a grant of $300,000 in total over three years for its
South East Engagement Project (the SEE Project).
The concept for the SEE Project was developed
in 2011 by WAFC in partnership with the Perth
Demons Football District, Kensington Police and
Citizens Youth Club, the Office of Crime Prevention
and Nyaarla Projects Pty Ltd, to respond to the
high rate of anti-social behaviour of Aboriginal
youth in the south east corridor of Perth.

In 2013-14, the Department also continued its
support for Netball WA’s pilot Youth Engagement
Program. The Program uses netball as a vehicle to
engage Aboriginal girls aged 12-17 years in Fitzroy
Crossing and Halls Creek in order to improve
education, health and employment outcomes.

Diverting at-risk youth involved
with the criminal justice system
through connection with
Aboriginal Elders and other
community members to enable
culturally based solutions.

The SEE Project targets at-risk Aboriginal youth by
re-engaging the youth through football, securing
training and employment opportunities and
implementing school engagement activities.

The Fathering Project
The Fathering Project Limited (FPL) is a University
of Western Australia-based non-profit team
of professionals whose aim is to help fathers
realise how important they are in a child’s life.
The Department provided FPL with a grant of
$100,000 to expand the project to include an
Aboriginal specific program that will promote the
role of father figures in the lives of
Aboriginal youth.
The grant will be used to develop and conduct a
one-day workshop to identify critical factors from
an Aboriginal fathering perspective, develop and
produce an Aboriginal Fathering Project DVD, and
ultimately lead to an Aboriginal Fathering Project
program that can be applied in pilot studies, in
partnership with other organisations.

Kings Park. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Pindi Pindi
- Combined Universities Aboriginal Research Centre for Community Wellbeing
In June 2014, the Department provided Pindi
Pindi, the National Research Centre for Aboriginal
Children, Families and Community (Pindi Pindi)
with a grant of $100,000 for the establishment of
the Combined Universities Aboriginal Research
Centre for Community Wellbeing.

Pindi Pindi is a hub for Aboriginal cultural research,
conducted by Aboriginal people, primarily
focused on strengthening Aboriginal families. It is
envisaged that the Aboriginal-led research centre
will provide training, employment and leadership
opportunities that recognise Aboriginal talent.

Facilitating governance and leadership training
through partnership and joint ventures.
Corporate Partnerships
During the year, the Department provided
$200,000 in funding to Jawun Indigenous
Corporate Partnerships (Jawun) to build the skills
and expertise of Aboriginal communities in the
Kimberley through the secondment of corporate
volunteers into Aboriginal organisations.
Through partnership arrangements with
government, corporate, private philanthropy
and Aboriginal organisations, Jawun aims to
build the capacity of Aboriginal individuals and
organisations, assist Aboriginal people to access
educational and economic opportunities, and
assist Aboriginal people to bring about health and
social reform.

Leadership Programs –
Leeuwin Ocean Adventure
Program
The Leeuwin Youth Leadership Program promotes
youth development through an adventure sailing
program on Australia’s largest dedicated sail
training tall ship, Leeuwin II.
In 2013-14, the Department sponsored 13 places
on Leeuwin Ocean Adventure Voyages for aspiring
young Aboriginal leaders aged 16 to 25. Through
the program, young Aboriginal people develop
their knowledge, confidence and skills to achieve
personal development and assist in the transition
to adulthood.
By June 2014, all 13 places had been filled for
the 2014 season, with four Aboriginal young
leaders setting sail on 13 June and returning
on 19 June. The Department has entered into
a new Memorandum of Understanding with
the Department of Local Government and
Communities to continue the Department’s
sponsorship of the Program for a further
three years to 2016.

Richard Indich, Troy Ryder, Tisha Waigana and Denise Pegler
after their seven-day journey on the STS Leeuwin II.
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Cultural Awareness Programs
In July 2013, the Department provided the
Australia Day Council of Western Australia
(ADCWA) with a grant of $50,000 to implement
an Aboriginal Education and Cultural Awareness
Training Program.
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The Program was established to promote
awareness and appreciation of Aboriginal culture
amongst ADCWA’s staff, stakeholders and
member organisations, including around
400 schools and 70 local government authorities.
The Program was launched during the 2013
NAIDOC Week and delivered in accordance with
ADCWA’s Reconciliation Action Plan.

Community
CommunityDevelopment
Development
West Australian Football Commission
– Cultural Awareness Training
In August 2013, the Department provided the
WAFC with a grant of $100,000 for Cultural
Awareness Training for WAFC staff.

history, sorry business, Aboriginal health and social
issues and challenges/barriers faced by Aboriginal
participants when entering the football pathway.

WAFC is the responsible body for football
throughout the State and overall development
of the game. WAFC has identified the need to
expand its existing Aboriginal Football Program
to leverage on the positive impact football has on
the Aboriginal community, participants and the
community as a whole.

WAFC commissioners, WAFC executive and
senior staff, and District Football Development staff
have already received this training. The training
sessions involved healthy discussions around
Aboriginal culture, football challenges, barriers and
opportunities.

Funds received from the Department will be used
to engage qualified and experienced cultural
awareness trainers to deliver half-day workshops
that will focus on Aboriginal cultural customs and

WAFC has also begun the development of its
Reconciliation Action Plan, anticipated to be
finalised in July 2014.

Sponsorship for Community Based Initiatives
In 2013-14, the Department provided
sponsorships totalling more than $190,000 to
support projects that promote Aboriginal youth
engagement, reconciliation and Aboriginal
leadership and capacity development.

•

$6,000 to the Kimberley Aboriginal Law and
Cultural Centre to support Karajarri dancers
to participate in a study tour and cultural
exchange with Indigenous groups in USA
and Canada; and

Funded projects include:

•

$15,000 for SIDS and Kids Western Australia
for its Yummy to be Mummy Project, an
initiative for young Aboriginal women going
through pregnancy and child rearing to
develop the knowledge and skills to have a
healthy pregnancy and child.

•

$10,000 for the Connection2Country program
aimed at building self-esteem and confidence
in disadvantaged young Aboriginal people
through positive traditional Aboriginal cultural
experiences, camping and involvement
with Country;

•

$5,000 for the Great Northern Football
League’s 2014 Yamatji Indigenous Round to
recognise and honour the achievements and
contributions of Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander footballers both past and present and
to promote reconciliation;

•

$10,000 to NAIDOC Perth for Miss NAIDOC
Perth 2014, a leadership and empowerment
program for Aboriginal women
aged 18-30 years;

Bringing together Aboriginal
and non-Aboriginal people
at a local level to develop
community projects and
initiatives that foster mutual
respect and understanding.
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Reconciliation Sponsorships
Since 2007, the Department has been the lead
State Government agency for supporting and
promoting reconciliation between Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal Australians.
The Department has established a partnership
arrangement with Lotterywest for 2013-14,
whereby Lotterywest will fund community based
projects and initiatives that support reconciliation
between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal
Australians.
In an effort to raise public awareness of
Reconciliation Week, the Department developed
the Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project
(The Banner Project) in 2011. The Banner
Project encourages corporate, government,
non-government and not-for-profit organisations
to sponsor a banner within the City of Perth
and display a logo and their organisation's
reconciliation message.
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In 2013-14, the Department partnered with the
City of Perth, Australia Day Council of WA and
Celebrate WA to facilitate and manage the Banner
Project, where 94 organisations sponsored the
display of 241 banners in the City of Perth.
The Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal
Affairs, hosted the launch of the Banner Project on
27 May at the State Reception Centre, which was
well attended by participating organisations as
well as the Department’s key stakeholders.

Community Development
Aboriginal Community Patrols
Aboriginal Community Patrols (Patrols) provide
street-level interventions to assist people at risk
of harm. Patrols are a culturally sensitive service
targeted at reducing contact between Aboriginal
people and the criminal justice and health systems
by assisting people from situations of potential
harm, taking them to a safer place and linking
them to support services.
During the year, the Department continued to
work closely with providers of Patrols. Patrols
currently operate in 14 locations across the State
in Broome, Carnarvon, Derby, Geraldton, Halls
Creek, Hedland, Kalgoorlie, Kununurra, Laverton,
Meekatharra, Mullewa, Perth, Roebourne,
and Wyndham.

In 2013, the Department engaged a consultant
to undertake a Statewide Review (the Review) of
Patrols. The Review was completed in December
2013 and highlighted the strong local community
acceptance and support for Patrols and its
community based operating model.
As a result of the Review, the Department provided
$5.7 million to fund the Patrols in 2013-14. The
Department has also secured funding for the
Patrols through to 2017-18.
During 2013-14, Patrols reported a total of
117,000 client actions across the State. Patrols
also transported 2,998 people to sobering up
centres, 799 people to medical services and
1,444 people to refuges or hostels.

Addressing Intestacy Amongst Aboriginal People in Western Australia
Research indicates that Aboriginal Western
Australians who have a will might be as low as
5 per cent compared to the mainstream
population rate that ranges from 44 to 50 per cent.
The Department recognises the importance of
ensuring that Aboriginal Western Australians
have awareness of, and access to, legal
services that support the writing of wills to avoid
the consequences of intestacy, including the
misidentification of beneficiaries.
In 2014, the Department established the Wills
Working Group, which includes representation
from the Public Trustee, Legal Aid WA, the
Aboriginal Legal Service of Western Australia, the
Law Society of Western Australia and the Arts Law
Centre of Australia (Arts Law).

The dual focus of the Wills Working Group is
to identify current barriers to will writing and to
develop effective strategies to significantly reduce
the rates of intestacy amongst Aboriginal
Western Australians.
In June 2014, the Department provided Arts Law
with a grant of $39,600 for its Artists in the Black
program (AITB) for 2014. AITB assists Aboriginal
artists in the drafting of wills, provides legal
assistance to families and art centres of deceased
Aboriginal artists when there is a will, and provides
legal assistance in relation to intestate estates.
In 2014, Arts Law, through AITB will conduct
community education workshops in at least eight
urban, regional and remote communities, draft a
minimum of 80 wills and provide intestacy advice
to at least 10 families.

Aboriginal History Research Unit
The Department’s Aboriginal History Research
Unit (AHRU) undertakes detailed Aboriginal
family history research and provides valuable
genealogical, historical information and advice in
response to applications received from Aboriginal
people, State Government departments and the
wider non-Aboriginal community.
AHRU has a significant role in providing
research material and access to restricted State
records for use in Native Title applications for
both government agencies and Native Title
Representative Bodies.

AHRU also manages access to Western Australian
archives housed at the State Records Office of
Western Australia and some privately owned
records that are under the jurisdiction of
the Department.
On average, AHRU assesses 350 applications per
year. During 2013-14, AHRU processed 143 family
history applications, 26 Native Title applications
and 162 general researcher enquiries.
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Arbor Grove Primary School.

Coolbinia Primary School.

Ardross Primary School.

Ardross Primary School.

Orange Grove Primary School.
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Halls Creek District High School.
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Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and Sharing (PALS)
Based on the core attributes of Partnership,
Acceptance, Learning and Sharing, PALS
encourages young Western Australians to develop
projects that promote and advance reconciliation.
Students undertake PALS projects sponsored
by the Department to enhance knowledge of
Aboriginal culture and lifestyle and explore how
Aboriginal people have been impacted by factors
such as European settlement, government
policies, religion, technology and education.
In 2013, 229 schools applied for PALS
sponsorship to develop 261 PALS projects, with
85 submitted for the 2013 PALS Awards. The Hon
Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs,
hosted the 2013 PALS Awards at Parliament
House in November 2013.
All 12 Award-winning schools were represented
at the event, with some making the trip from

locations such as Halls Creek, Karratha
and Newman.
2014 marked the tenth anniversary of PALS.
To celebrate this milestone, the program was
expanded to include a new category
'Aboriginal Language'.
The PALS program continues in 2014 with
225 projects funded and in progress. In 2014-15,
the State Government will increase PALS funding
by $100,000 to $335,000. These additional
funds will allow significant expansion by up to an
additional 133 schools participating in projects
that promote and advance reconciliation within
their schools and communities.
Approximately 110,000 students from
government, private and independent schools
have participated in PALS projects since the
program began in 2004.

PALS Awards 2013
The PALS Award winners for 2013 were:
•

Troy Cook Award (Overall Winner): Coolbinia
Primary School.

•

Community Participation: St Paul’s Primary
School (Karratha).

•

Student Engagement: Mingenew Primary
School.

•

The Arts: Wesley College.

•

Health: Riverside Primary School.

•

Environment: Coolbinia Primary School.

The following schools were also recognised in the
below categories for their contribution to the PALS
program with Special Acknowledgement awards:
•

Environment: Ardross Primary School, Orange
Grove Primary School;

•

Community Participation: South Newman
Primary School;

•

Student Engagement: Arbor Grove Primary
School;

•

The Arts: Beehive Montessori School and
Comet Bay College; and

•

Health: Halls Creek District High School.

The overall winner in 2013 was Coolbinia Primary
School (the School), which completed a project
Kurongkurl Katitjin at Coolbinia (Coming together
to learn at Coolbinia).
In 2013, the School built on the efforts made over
recent years to develop a whole-school education
program in collaboration with local Aboriginal
Elders and Aboriginal people.
Activities included caring for bushland adjacent to
the School and planting more than 600 endemic
plants, developing a bush tucker garden, taking
lessons with Aboriginal musicians and artists,
engaging with traditional and modern Aboriginal
storytelling, presenting acknowledgements to
Country at all school assemblies, and Noongar
language lessons.

Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs
with Troy Cook, Michael Hayden and PALS Award
winners, Coolbinia Primary School.
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Auditor General’s Opinions

Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by
Service, and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the
year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs at 30 June 2014
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs during the year
ended 30 June 2014.
Controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are those policies and procedures
established by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions.
Director General’s Responsibility for Controls
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs based on my audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
controls to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and
implementation of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are sufficiently
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014.
Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the
year ended 30 June 2014.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing and Assurance Standards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of
outcome achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs are
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the Department’s
website. The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Department’s
website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Department’s website.
The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators
described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been
hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the
financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks
arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited
financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this
website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL FINANCIAL AUDIT
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
29 August 2014
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Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
THE ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority.
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority at
30 June 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Report on Controls
I have audited the controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority during the
year ended 30 June 2014.
Controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are those policies and
procedures established by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities
have been in accordance with legislative provisions.
Director General’s Responsibility for Controls
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority based on my audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
controls to ensure that the Authority complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and
implementation of relevant controls.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the controls exercised by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are
sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities
have been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014.
Report on the Key Performance Indicators
I have audited the key performance indicators of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for
the year ended 30 June 2014.
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance.
Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing and Assurance Standards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of
outcome achievement and service provision.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority are
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Authority’s performance and fairly
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and
Key Performance Indicators
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of The
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the
Authority’s website. The Authority’s management is responsible for the integrity of the
Authority’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Authority’s
website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance
indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may
have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If
users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the
inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy
of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information
contained in this website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators.

DON CUNNINGHAME
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL FINANCIAL AUDIT
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia
29 August 2014
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2014.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Amelia Yam						Cliff Weeks
A/Chief Finance Officer				

Director General

Date: 28 August 2014					

Date: 28 August 2014
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense

6

18,205

18,568

Supplies and services

7

10,472

10,394

Depreciation and amortisation expense

8

227

169

Accommodation expenses

9

3,047

3,112

Grants and subsidies

10

4,184

8,258

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

14

-

24

Other expenses

11

453

636

36,588

41,161

Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Commonwealth grants and contributions

12

-

1,525

Other revenue

13

928

1,186

Total Revenue

928

2,711

Total income other than income from State Government

928

2,711

35,660

38,450

NET COST OF SERVICES

Income from State Government
Service appropriation

15

31,992

38,999

Services received free of charge

15

658

634

Royalties for Regions Fund

15

185

2,644

Total income from State Government

32,835

42,277

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

(2,825)

3,827

-

27

-

27

(2,825)

3,854

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus

26

Total other comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
See also the 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service' at page 67.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

27

4,197

9,876

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

16

1,817

2,006

Receivables

17

453

495

Amounts receivable for services

18

185

452

Other current assets

19

260

214

6,912

13,043

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

16

630

555

Receivables

17

-

-

Amounts receivable for services

18

319

80

Plant and equipment

20

450

471

Intangible Assets

21

1,572

448

Total Non-Current Assets

2,971

1,554

TOTAL ASSETS

9,883

14,597

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables

23

547

609

Provisions

24

3,410

3,398

Other current liabilities

25

1,563

330

5,520

4,337

731

797

731

797

TOTAL LIABILITIES

6,251

5,134

NET ASSETS

3,632

9,463

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

24

Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity

26

1,063

4,068

Reserves

26

213

213

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

26

2,356

5,182

3,632

9,463

TOTAL EQUITY
See also the 'Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service' at page 68.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

31,753

38,589

Capital contributions

616

1,587

Holding account drawdown

267

374

(3,621)

-

185

2,644

29,200

43,194

Employee benefits

(18,205)

(18,262)

Supplies and services

(10,844)

(12,391)

Accommodation

(2,478)

(2,543)

(2,744)

(8,258)

(1,714)

(1,851)

(79)

(136)

(441)

(724)

-

1,525

57

110

1,761

1,750

998

1,717

(33,689)

(39,062)

(1,304)

(620)

-

13

Net cash used in investing activities

(1,304)

(607)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(5,793)

3,525

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

12,437

8,912

6,644

12,437

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations

Non-retained revenue distributed to owner
Royalties for Regions Fund

Net cash provided by State Government

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Grants and subsidies

GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments
Receipts
Commonwealth grants and contributions
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

27

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD
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The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Contributed
equity

Reserves

Accumulated
surplus /
(deficit)

Total equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

2,481

186

1,355

4,022

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

3,827

3,827

Other comprehensive income

-

27

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

27

3,827

3,854

1,587

-

-

1,587

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

-

-

-

-

Total

1,587

-

-

1,587

Balance at 30 June 2013

4,068

213

5,181

9,462

Balance at 1 July 2013

4,068

213

5,181

9,462

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

(2,825)

(2,825)

Other comprehensive income

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

(2,825)

(2,825)

616

-

-

616

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

(3,621)

-

-

(3,621)

Total

(3,005)

-

-

(3,005)

1,063

213

2,356

3,632

Note

Balance at 1 July 2012

26

27

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital appropriations

-

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital appropriations
Other contributions by owners

Balance at 30 June 2014

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS

Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Heritage
Management

Land
Management

Accountable
Government

Community
Development

Total

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits
expense

4,304

5,626

3,202

2,785

5,786

7,966

4,913

2,191

18,205

18,568

Supplies and services

2,476

3,149

1,842

1,559

3,328

4,459

2,826

1,227

10,472

10,394

Depreciation and
amortisation expense

54

51

40

25

72

73

61

20

227

169

Accommodation
expenses

720

943

536

467

968

1,335

823

367

3,047

3,112

Grants and subsidies

989

2,502

736

1,239

1,330

3,543

1,129

974

4,184

8,258

-

7

-

4

-

10

-

3

-

24

107

193

80

95

144

273

122

75

453

636

8,650

12,471

6,436

6,174

11,628

17,659

9,874

4,857

36,588

41,161

-

462

-

229

-

654

-

180

-

1,525

Other revenue

219

359

163

178

295

509

251

140

928

1,186

Total income other
than income from
State Government

219

821

163

407

295

1,163

251

320

928

2,711

8,431

11,650

6,273

5,767

11,333

16,496

9,623

4,537

35,660

38,450

7,563

11,817

5,627

5,850

10,167

16,731

8,635

4,601

31,992

38,999

156

192

116

95

209

272

177

75

658

634

44

801

33

397

59

1,134

49

312

185

2,644

Total income from
State Government

7,763

12,810

5,776

6,342

10,435

18,137

8,861

4,988

32,835

42,277

Surplus/(deficit) for
the period

(668)

1,160

(497)

575

(898)

1,641

(762)

451

(2,825)

3,827

Loss on disposal of noncurrent assets
Other expenses
Total cost of services

Income
Commonwealth grants
and contributions

NET COST OF
SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE
GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Services received free of
charge
Royalties for Regions
Fund

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS

Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service
As at 30 June 2014
Heritage
Management

Land
Management

Accountable
Government

Community
Development

Total

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

2014

2013

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Total assets

1,634

3,952

287

593

91

254

4,900

8,244

6,912

13,043

702

471

123

71

39

30

2,107

982

2,971

1,554

2,336

4,423

410

664

130

284

7,007

9,226

9,883

14,597

1,305

1,314

230

197

73

85

3,912

2,741

5,520

4,337

173

241

30

36

10

15

518

505

731

797

1,478

1,555

260

233

83

100

4,430

3,246

6,251

5,134

858

2,868

150

431

47

184

2,577

5,980

3,632

9,463

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates
For the year ended 30 June 2014
2014
Estimate
$000

2014
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

2014
Actual
$000

2013
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

DELIVERY OF SERVICES
Item 31 Net amount provided to
deliver services

34,279

30,535

(3,744)

30,535

37,547

(7,012)

-

1,208

1,208

1,208

1,208

-

249

-

249

244

5

31,992

(2,536)

31,992

38,999

(7,007)

616

-

616

1,587

(971)

35,144

32,608

(2,536)

32,608

40,586

(7,978)

Heritage Management

10,505

8,650

(1,855)

8,650

12,471

(3,821)

Land Management

6,253

6,436

183

6,436

6,174

262

Accountable Government

25,673

11,628

(14,045)

11,628

17,659

(6,031)

Community Development

3,452

9,874

6,422

9,874

4,857

5,017

Total Cost of Services

45,883

36,588

(9,295)

36,588

41,161

(4,573)

Less Total Income

1,468

(928)

(2,396)

(928)

(2,711)

1,783

Net Cost of Services

47,351

35,660

(11,691)

35,660

38,450

(2,790)

(12,823)

(3,668)

9,155

(3,668)

549

(4,217)

34,528

31,992

(2,536)

31,992

38,999

(7,007)

Purchase of non-current
physical assets

1,068

(1,304)

(2,372)

(1,304)

(620)

(684)

Adjustments for other funding
sources

(452)

1,920

2,372

1,920

2,207

(287)

616

616

-

616

1,587

(971)

Section 25 Transfer of service
appropriation
Amount Authorised by Other
Statutes
- Salaries and Allowances Act
1975
Total appropriations provided
to deliver services

249
34,528

CAPITAL
Item 125 Capital appropriations
GRAND TOTAL

616

Details of Expenses by Service

Adjustments (a)
Total appropriations provided
to deliver services
Capital Expenditure

Capital Contribution
(appropriation)

68

(a) Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and superannuation.
Note 32 'Explanatory statement' provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between
the actual results for 2014 and 2013.
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DEPARTMENT OF ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Department’s financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards. The term
‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standard Board (AASB).
The Department has adopted any applicable new and
revised Australian Accounting Standards from their
operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian
Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI
1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and
Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption
of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued
or amended (but not operative) by the Department for the
annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($’000).

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have
been made in the process of applying the Department’s
accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect
on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses
key assumptions made concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises of the Department only.
Mission

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General statement
The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity
that prepares general purpose financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied
by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are
modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application,
disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s
Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence
over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention, except for land, buildings and infrastructure
which have been measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The Department’s mission is to manage Aboriginal heritage
and land held in trust for future generations and to ensure
outcomes for Aboriginal people through community
development and government investments.
The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary
appropriation.
Services
The Department provides the following services:
Service 1: Heritage Management
To provide suppport to achieve the right balance between
the development and protection to ensure economic
opportunities are leveraged to the benefit of the whole
community.
Service 2: Land Management
To better utilise the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate to achieve
shared social and economic benefits.
Service 3: Accountable Government
To provide support to improve accountability for the delivery
of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments.
Service 4: Community Development
The provision of support to the Western Australian
Aboriginal Community to independently determine and
further their identified priorities.
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(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made
to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers
in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result
of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions
by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such
transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital
appropriations have been designated as contributions by
owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly
Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited
directly to Contributed equity.

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at
fair value in the period in which the Department obtains
control over the funds. The Department obtains control
of the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the
Department’s bank account.
Gains

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies,
other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners
where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal.

Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a
net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of
non current assets and some revaluations of non current
assets.

(e) Income

Capitalisation / Expensing of assets

Revenue recognition

Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are
recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is
expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of
plant and equipment and works of art costing less than
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of
a group similar items which are significant in total).

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised for the major business activities as follows:
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
Service appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair
value in the period in which the Department gains control
of the appropriated funds. The Department gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to
the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for
services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.
Net Appropriation Determination
The Treasurer may make a determination providing for
prescribed receipts to be retained for services under
the control of the Department. In accordance with
the determination specified in the 2013-2014 Budget
Statements, the Department retained $0.928 million in 2014
($2.711 million in 2013) from the following:

(f) Plant and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement
Plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or
for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of
acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the
revaluation model is used for the measurement of works of
art and the cost model for all other plant and equipment.
Works of art are carried at fair value. All other items of
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
The Department revalues its works of art every 3 years by
a specialist in the valuation of Aboriginal art. The valuation
determined at this time is the fair value of the works of
art. Any additional purchases between revaluations are
recognised at purchase cost.

•

grants and subsidies;

•

other Departmental revenue; and

Derecognition

•

GST input credits.

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of plant and
equipment or works of art, any revaluation surplus relating
to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal
contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department
obtains control over the assets comprising the
contributions, usually when cash is received.
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Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions
by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions
of services are only recognised when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would be purchased if
not donated.

Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as
described in note 20 ‘Plant and Equipment’.
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Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future
economic benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method,
using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful
lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any
related hardware.
Licences
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.
Development costs

Plant and equipment
(excluding Leasehold
Improvements)

8 to10 years

Leasehold Improvements

Over the remaining term of
lease

Office Equipment

3 to 5 years

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward
when the future economic benefits can reasonably be
regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to
exceed $50,000. Other development costs are expensed as
incurred.

Motor vehicles

3 to 8 years

Computer Software

Works of art controlled by the Department are classified
as property, plant and equipment, which are anticipated
to have very long and indefinite useful lives. Their service
potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed
during the reporting period and so no depreciation has
been recognised.

(g) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation / expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more
and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000
or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is
expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is
recognised as plant and equipment. Software that is not
an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as
an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is
expensed in the year of acquisition.
Website costs
Website costs are charged as expenses when they
are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or
development of an asset when they may be capitalised and
amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies
during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs
of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed.
Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website that can
be reliably measured, are capitalised to the extent that they
represent probable future economic benefits.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets
acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair
value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated
useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line
basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Department
have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible
asset are:
Licences

up to 10 years

Development Costs

3 to 5 years

Software(a)

3 to 5 years

Website costs

3 to 5 years
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(h) Impairment of Assets

(j) Financial Instruments

Plant and equipment are tested for any indication of
impairment at each reporting period. Where there is
an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost
is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously
revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the
loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other
comprehensive income.

In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of
financial instrument:
•

Loans and Receivables, and

•

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the
following classes:
Financial Assets
•

Cash and cash equivalents

•

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

As the Department is a not-for-profit entity, unless a
specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset,
the recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair
value less cost to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

•

Receivables

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated,
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a
significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption
or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments
is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction
cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether
there is any indication of impairment.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus
assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined
by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value
is determined by reference to depreciated replacement
cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
(i) Leases
The Department holds operating leases for head office
and a number of branch office buildings. Lease payments
are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term
as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased properties.

Financial Liabilities
•

Payables

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is
the transaction cost or the face value because there is no
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is
not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
(l) Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries [refer to note 23 ‘Payables’] represent the
amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial
year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the
financial year end. The Department considers the carrying
amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair
value.
The accrued salaries suspense account [refer to note 16
‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’] consists of amounts
paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10
financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in
each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the
normal 26. No interest is received on this account.
(m) Amounts receivable for services (holding account)
The Department receives funding on an accrual basis.
The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an
asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount
receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash
funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset
replacement.
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(n) Receivables

Long service leave

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e.
impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as
uncollectible are written off against the allowance account.
The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is
raised when there is objective evidence that the Department
will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30
days.

Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using
the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement.

(o) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the
Department becomes obliged to make future payments as
a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally
settled within 30 days.
(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
and are recognised where there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when
the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels including
non salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee
departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified
as current liabilities as the Department does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Pre-conditional
and conditional long service leave provisions are classified
as non-current liabilities because the Department has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability
until the employee has completed the requisite years
of service.

(i) Provisions - employee benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period.
Annual leave
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore
considered to be ‘other long term employee benefits’. The
annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the
present value of amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected
to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels including
non salary components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of employee
departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current
liability as the Department does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
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Purchased Leave

(ii) Provisions - other

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service
employees who have entered into an agreement to selffund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year.
The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for
employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Employment On-Costs

Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board
(GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in
accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria
for membership in particular schemes for public sector
employees varies according to commencement and
implementation dates.
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a
defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members
since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme
(GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new
members since 1995.
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007
who were not members of either the Pension Scheme
or the GSS became non contributory members of the
West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007
became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).
From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or
GESBS and new employees became able to choose their
preferred superannuation fund. The Department makes
concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf
of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration)
Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes
extinguish the Department’s liability for superannuation
charges in respect of employees who are not members of
the Pension Scheme or GSS.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of
employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it
is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because
the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made
by the Department to GESB extinguishes the agency’s
obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The Department has no liabilities under the Pension
Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits
attributable to members who transferred from the Pension
Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS
obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by
the Department to the GESB.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the
Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the
Treasurer for the employer’s share.
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Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation
insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised
separately as liabilities and expenses when the
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment
on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and
are not included as part of the Department’s ‘Employee
benefits expense’. The related liability is included in
‘Employment on-costs provision’.
(q) Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income comprises of employer
contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions),
the WSS, the GESBS, or other superannuation funds. The
employer contribution paid to the GESB in respect of the
GSS is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the
GESB.
(r) Assets and services received free of charge or for
nominal value
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal
cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as
income at the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value
of those services that the Department would otherwise
pay for. A corresponding expense is recognised for
services received. Receipts of assets are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position.
Assets or services received from other State Government
agencies are separately disclosed under Income from State
Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
(s) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified
to be comparable with the figures presented in the current
financial year.
(t) Support Provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands Trust
Decision making Department in respect of the Aboriginal
land estate effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT), a body established under the auspices of the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (now titled the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs) was established on 1
November 1994, it effectively took over the operations of
its originating agencies, including the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by
the AAPA at that time were transferred to the AAD. As a
consequence, administrative support for the AAPA and the
ALT was provided by staff employed by the AAD. See Note
28 ‘Services provided free of charge’.
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3. Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies.

AASB 119

Employee Benefits

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements about the application
of accounting policies that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
Department evaluates these judgements regularly.

This Standard supersedes AASB 119
(October 2010), making changes to the
recognition, presentation and disclosure
requirements.

Operating lease commitment

The Department assessed employee leave
patterns to determine whether annual leave
is a short-term or other long-term employee
benefit. The resultant discounting of
annual leave liabilities that were previously
measured at the undiscounted amounts is
not material.

The Department has entered into a number of leases for
buildings for branch office accommodation. Some of these
leases relate to buildings of a temporary nature and it has
been determined that the lessor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly,
these leases have been classified as operating leases.
Leasehold improvements

AASB 1048

The Department capitalises leasehold improvements where
significant economic benefit is obtained.

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048
(June 2012), enabling references to the
Interpretations in all other Standards to be
updated by reissuing the service Standard.
There is no financial impact.

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Department makes key estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating
the Department’s long service leave provision include
expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee
retention rates and expected future payments. Changes
in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the
carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

Interpretation of Standards

AASB
2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102,
108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128,
131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141,
1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14,
17, 19, 131 & 132]
This Standard replaces the existing
definition and fair value guidance in other
Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB
13 in September 2011. There is no financial
impact.

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy
and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Department has applied the following Australian
Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that impacted on the
Department:
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement
This Standard defines fair value, sets out
a framework for measuring fair value and
requires additional disclosures for assets
and liabilities measured at fair value. There
is no financial impact.
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AASB
2011-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 119
(September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124,
134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

AASB
2012-9

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive
Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia
has no financial impact for the Department
during the reporting period and at balance
date. Measurement of tax assets and
liabilities continues to be measured in
accordance with enacted or substantively
enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.4647.

This Standard makes amendments to
other Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations as a result of issuing
AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant
discounting of annual leave liabilities
that were previously measured at the
undiscounted amounts is not material.
AASB
2012-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
[AASB 7 & 132]
This Standard amends the required
disclosures in AASB 7 to include information
that will enable users of an entity’s financial
statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements, including
rights of set-off associated with the entity’s
recognised financial assets and recognised
financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial
position. There is no financial impact.

AASB
2012-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1,
101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]
This Standard makes amendments to
the Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as a consequence of the
annual improvements process. There is no
financial impact.

AASB
2012-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Mandatory Effective Date
of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures
[AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]
This Standard amends the mandatory
effective date of AASB 9 Financial
Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead
of 1 January 2013). Further amendments
are also made to numerous consequential
amendments arising from AASB 9 that will
now apply from 1 January 2015. There is
no financial impact.
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Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from
the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039

AASB
2012-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Transition Guidance and
Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10,
11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127,
128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039,
1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12]
The Standard introduces a number of
editorial alterations and amends the
mandatory application date of Standards for
not for profit entities accounting for interests
in other entities. There is no financial
impact.

AASB
2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments.
Part A of this omnibus Standard makes
amendments to other Standards arising
from revisions to the Australian Accounting
Conceptual Framework for periods ending
on or after 20 December 2013. Other Parts
of this Standard become operative in later
periods. There is no financial impact for
Part A of the Standard.
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Department has not applied early any following
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Department. Where applicable, the Department plans
to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

Int 21

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning
on/after
Levies

01-January-2014

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a
government levy imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact
for the Department at reporting date.
AASB 9

Financial Instruments

01-January-2018

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January
2018. The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential
impact of the Standard.
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose
Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012 10
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and
Other Amendments. The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact
for the Department as it does not impact accounting for related bodies and the
Department has no interests in other entities.
AASB 11

Joint Arrangements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in
Joint Ventures, introducing new principles for determining the type of joint
arrangement that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangement.
Mandatory application of the Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities
by AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact for the Department as the new
standard continues to require proportional consolidation of the Department’s
rights to assets and liabilities for the unincorporated joint operation.
AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements
under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128
Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by
AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact.
AASB 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01-January-2016

The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.
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AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, removing the consolidation requirements of
the earlier standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for
the preparation of separate financial statements. Mandatory application was
deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact.
AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

01-January-2014

This Standard issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 128 Investments in
Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the accounting treatments
of changed ownership interest.
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Department
as it does not hold investments in associates or and the accounting treatments
for joint operations is consistent with current practice.
AASB 1031

Materiality

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian
guidance on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on
materiality in other Australian pronouncements. There is no financial impact.
AASB 1055

Budgetary Reporting

01-July-2014

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the circumstances
in which they are to be included in the general purpose financial statements of
not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The Department
will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations
of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no
financial impact.
AASB 2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Int 10 & 12]

01-January-2015

[modified by AASB 2010-7]
AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

01-January-2015

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in
December 2010.
AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1
January 2015. The Department has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7,101, 107,
112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance
of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For not-for-profit
entities it applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014. The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential
impact of the Standard.
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AASB 2012-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132].

01-January-2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including
clarifying the meaning of " currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off"
and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net
settlement.
The Department does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities
that it intends to settle on a net basis, therefore there is no financial impact.
AASB 2013-3

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for NonFinancial Assets.

01-January-2014

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no
financial impact.
AASB 2013-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139]

01-January-2014

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances
where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is
novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of
laws or regulations. The Department does not routinely enter into derivatives
or hedges, therefore there is no financial impact.
AASB 2013-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation
Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10,
12 & 1049].

01-January-2014

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in
determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial
returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The Standard has
no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results from the adoption
of the amended AASB 10.
AASB 2013-9

AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments.

01-January-2014

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising
from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the application
of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The application date of AASB 9 was
subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Department has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise
there is no financial impact for Part B.

01-January-2017

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

01-July- 2014
01-January-2015
01-January-2016
01-January-2018

The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.
Changes in accounting estimates

There were no changes in accounting estimates that will have an effect on the current reporting period or are expected to have an
effect in future periods.
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6. Employee benefits expense
2014

2013

$000

$000

16,718

Details of the Services Purchased from Non-Government
Agencies are listed below:
Bloodwood Tree Association Inc.

266

195

17,120

Emu Services

282

207

1,487

1,448

Garl Garl Walbu Aboriginal
Corporation

266

195

18,205

18,568

Geraldton Yamatji Patrol Aboriginal
Corporation

381

265

Jungarni Jutiya Indigenous
Corporation

240

232

-

(134)

Kununurra Waringarri Aboriginal
Corporation

345

237

Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation
insurance are included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

Laverton Leonora Cross Cultural
Association

-

184

The employment on-costs liability is included at
note 24 ‘Provisions’.

Mamabulanjin Aboriginal Corp

396

245

Wages and Salaries (a)
Superannuation - defined
contribution plans (b)

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee
plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements
including superannuation contribution component.

Halls Creek People's Church

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold
State, GESBS and other eligible funds.

MEEDAC Incorporated

7. Supplies and services
2014

2013

$000

$000

434

385

Services and contractors

3,329

4,610

Service Purchased from Non Govt
Agencies

5,160

3,337

Consumables

260

343

Operating leases

512

571

Communications

Repairs and maintenance

1,166

203

Milliya Rumurra

-

20

Mullewa

-

96

345

237

1,014

808

-

90

Ngnowar Aerwah Aboriginal
Corporation
Nyoongar Patrol System Inc.
Warburton Community Inc.
Yaandina Family Centre

127

94

Yulella Aboriginal Corporation

331

163

5,159

3,337

6

5

Electricity and water

258

167

Travel

479

794

2014

2013

Other

34

182

$000

$000

10,472

10,394

Furniture and fittings

1

14

Plant and equipment

25

11

IT equipment

151

128

Total depreciation

177

153

8. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation

Amortisation
Computer software

50

16

Total amortisation

50

16

227

169

Total depreciation and amortisation
See also Note 2(f) Plant & Equipment.
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9. Accommodation expenses

Lease rentals
Repairs and maintenance
Other

2014

2013

$000

$000

3,001

3,008

7

19

39

85

3,047

3,112

10. Grants and subsidies
2014

2013

$000

$000

4,184

8,258

4,184

8,258

Recurrent
Grants to non-government agencies

Details of grants in excess of $100,000 are listed below:
Other Grants
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority

-

650

City of Swan

116

116

Jawun - Indigenous Enterprise Partnership

200

200

Kimberley Interpreting Service Aboriginal Corporation

100

100

Laverton Supermarket (Lenora Investments Trust)

-

150

Shire of Halls Creek

-

200

The Community Development Foundation

-

100

West Australian Football Commission Inc.

200

100

Yura Yungi Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation
Aboriginal Marine Services Indigenous Corporation
Department of Housing

-

150

100

-

1,440

-

EON Foundation

100

-

Fathering Project Limited

100

-

Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan Aboriginal Corporation

140

-

Kimberley Language Resource Centre A C

100

-

Koya Aboriginal Corporation

100

-

Netball WA (Inc.)

125

-

Telethon Kids Institute

200

-

University of Western Australia

175

-
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11. Other expenses

Bad Debts
Building Maintenance
Employment on-costs (a)
Other (b)

2014

2013

$000

$000

6

3

22

114

378

472

47

47

453

636

(a) Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the
recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 24 ‘’Provisions’. Superannuation contributions
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b) Audit fee, see also note 35 ‘Remuneration of auditor’.

12. Commonwealth grants and contributions
2014

2013

$000

$000

Kalumburu Roads (a)

-

1,440

Halls Creek Healing Centre (b)

-

85

-

1,525

(a) Kalumburu Roads

Funds
Received

Funds
Expended

Balance

$000

$000

$000

2012-13

1,440

0

1,440

2013-14

0

1,440

-1,440

1,440

1,440

0

Funding received from Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (formerly Department of Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs). This project was to provide support for the remedial works to flood damaged
roads in the Kalumburu Community . As the Department is no longer managing the project, the funds are to be returned.

(b) Halls Creek Healing Centre

2012-13

Funds
Received

Funds
Expended

Balance

$000

$000

$000

85

85

0

85

85

0

Funding received from Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (formerly Department of Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous Affairs) in 2012-13 to fund a project manager for the Halls Creek Healing Strategy
program. Funds were expended in FY 2012-13.
See also note 16 'Restricted Cash and cash equivalents' for more detail.
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13. Other revenue

Contributions from State Government agencies

2014

2013

$000

$000

345

377

-

338

428

267

43

41

Other contributions
Contributions for special projects
Miscellaneous Revenue
Revenues from non-operating activities
Government Vehicle Scheme
Staff housing contributions

112

163

928

1,186

14. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
2014

2013

$000

$000

-

13

-

13

Proceeds of Disposal of Non-Current Assets
IT equipment
Costs from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
IT equipment
Net gain/( loss)

37
-

37

-

(24)

2014

2013

$000

$000

31,992

38,999

31,992

38,999

89

65

569

569

658

634

32,650

39,633

185

2,644

185

2,644

15. Income from State Government

Appropriations received during the period :
Service appropriations (a)
Services received free of charge from other State
government agencies during the financial period (b)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates
provided by agencies:
State Solicitor’s Office - legal advice
Department of Finance - Property Management Services

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Community Services Fund (c)

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and
a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and any
agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year.
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(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Department recognises revenue
equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and which
would have been purchased if they were not donated. Where the contributions of assets or services are in the nature of
contributions by owners, the Department makes an adjustment direct to equity.
(c) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The recurrent funds are committed to projects and
programs in WA regional areas through the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority.

16. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
2014

2013

$000

$000

150

150

Current
Remote Indigenous Housing West Kimberley Tripartite Forum (a)
Kalumburu Local Area Community Coordinator
Kalumburu Roads (b)

-

14

1,667

1,667

Kimberley Science & Conservation Strategy

-

175

1,817

2,006

Accrued salaries suspense account (c)

630

555

Total Non-Current

630

555

2,447

2,561

Total Current
Non-current

(a) Funding to support the Kimberley Land Council and its nominated organisations to attend meetings of the West
Kimberley Tripartite Forum and its working groups.
(b) Funding to support remedial works to flood damaged roads at Kalumburu Community.
(c) Amount held in the suspense account for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that occurs
every 11 year.

17. Receivables
2014

2013

$000

$000

183

201

Current
Receivables
Allowance for impairment of receivables

-

-

270

294

453

495

Balance at start of period

-

23

Doubtful debts expense recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

-

-

(6)

(23)

Impairment losses reversed during the period

6

-

Balance at end of period

-

-

GST receivable
Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of
receivables.

Amounts written off during the period

The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(n) ‘Receivables’ and note 32 ‘Financial Instruments’.
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18. Amounts receivable for services

Current
Non-current

2014

2013

$000

$000

185

452

319

80

504

532

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. See note 2(m) ‘Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding
Account)’. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.

19. Other assets
2014

2013

$000

$000

260

214

260

214

Current
Prepayments

20. Plant and equipment
2014

2013

$000

$000

53

53

(53)

(53)

-

-

Vehicles
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Vehicles
Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total plant and equipment

144

170

(106)

(106)

38

64

984

900

(768)

(689)

216

211

Information technology equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Information technology equipment
Works of art (a)
At fair value

196

196

Total Works of art

196

196

450

471

(a) Works of art were revalued in accordance with a valuation which was undertaken by an independent contractor, Joy
Legge, Art Consultant, Curator and Valuer on the basis of current market value, as at October 2012. See note 2(f) ‘Plant
and Equipment’.
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period
are set out in the table below:
Works of
Art

Vehicles

Plant &
equipment

Information
technology
equipment

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

196

-

64

211

471

Re-distribution of assets between classes

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

-

-

-

156

156

Disposals

-

-

(26)

(72)

(98)

Revaluation increments

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation

-

-

-

(79)

(79)

196

-

38

216

450

Works of
Art

Vehicles

Plant &
equipment

Information
technology
equipment

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

2014
Carrying amount at start of period

Carrying amount at end of period

2013
169

-

153

156

478

Re-distribution of assets between classes Shared Services Roll in

Carrying amount at start of period

-

-

(73)

73

-

Additions

-

-

22

134

156

Disposals
Revaluation increments
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

86

-

-

(13)

(24)

(37)

27

-

-

-

27

-

-

(25)

(128)

(153)

196

-

64

211

471
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21. Intangible assets
2014

2013

$000

$000

Computer Software
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Computer Software

1,342

245

(67)

(16)

1,275

229

297

219

Work in progress
At cost
Total Work in progress

297

219

1,572

448

229

-

Reconciliations
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions

1,342

245

Classified as held for sale

-

-

Impairment losses

-

-

Impairment losses reversed

-

-

(67)

(16)

1,504

229

Carrying amount at start of period

219

-

Additions

Amortisation expense
Carrying amount at end of period
Work in progress

297

219

Classified as held for sale

-

-

Impairment losses

-

-

Impairment losses reversed

-

-

Amortisation expense

-

-

516

219

Carrying amount at end of period

22. Impairments of assets
There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment assets at 30 June 2014.
The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of
the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

23. Payables
2014

2013

$000

$000

130

284

56

39

Accrued Salaries

361

286

Total Current

547

609

Current
Trade payables
Accrued Expenses

See also note 2(o) ‘Payables’ and note 33 ‘Financial Instruments’.
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24. Provisions
2014

2013

$000

$000

Annual leave (a)

1,373

1,338

Long service leave (b)

1,607

1,646

30

25

3,010

3,009

400

389

400

389

3,410

3,398

654

715

654

715

77

82

Current
Employee benefits provision

Purchased leave ( c )
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)
Total current provisions
Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)
Total non current provisions
Total provisions

77

82

731

797

4,141

4,195

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to
occur as follows:

Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

2014

2013

$000

$000

933

904

440

434

1,373

1,338

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is
expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

2014

2013

$000

$000

1,607

1,646

654

715

2,261

2,361

(c) Purchased leave has been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period. All purchased leave must be settled by 31st December each year or it is
automatically paid out.

Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period
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2013

$000

$000

30

25

-

-

30
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(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including
workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense,
apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the period, other than employee benefits, are set out below:
2014

2013

$000

$000

471

558

6

(87)

477

471

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period
Additional provisions recognised
Carrying amount at end of period

25. Other liabilities
2014

2013

$000

$000

Current
Income received in advance

70

-

Unclaimed monies

5

1

Fringe benefits tax

62

61

Other (a)

1,426

268

Total current

1,563

330

(a) This relates primarily to the accrual of unspent monies for the Kalumburu Roads project that are expected to be returned.

26. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Department on behalf of the community. Equity
represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Department. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of
equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.
2014

2013

$000

$000

4,068

2,481

616

1,587

-

-

4,684

4,068

Net assets transferred to Government (c):

(3,621)

-

Total distributions to owners

(3,621)

-

1,063

4,068

Contributed Equity
Balance at start of period
Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation (b)
Other contributions by owners:
Transfer net assets from other agencies (a)
Total contributions by owners
Distributions to owners

Balance at end of period

(a) Under AASB 1004 ‘Contributions’, transfers of net assets as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements are
to be accounted for as contributions by owners and distributions to owners.
(b) Under TI 955 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities, capital appropriations have been
designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to
Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities.
(c) This represents the return of unspent monies for the Browse LNG project.
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Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at the start of period

2014

2013

$000

$000

213

186

-

27

213

213

5,182

1,355

Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
Works of art
Balance at the end of period
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at the start of period
Changes in accounting policy

(1)

-

(2,825)

3,827

Balance at the end of period

2,356

5,182

Total Equity at end of period

3,632

9,463

Result for the period

27. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the
Statement of Financial Position as follows:
2014

2013

$000

$000

Cash and cash equivalents

4,197

9,876

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see also note 16)

2,447

2,561

6,644

12,437

(35,660)

(38,450)

227

169

-

24

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash
flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8
‘Depreciation and amortisation expense’)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (note 14
‘Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets')
Accrued service appropriation adjustment

(32)

Services received free of charge

658

634

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a)

18

1,539

(40)

(101)

(62)

(3,018)

12

55

Other current liabilities

1,233

267

Non-current provisions

(66)

(55)

Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)

25

(127)

Change in GST receivables/payables (c)

(2)

1

(33,689)

(39,062)

Other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)
Current provisions

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
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At the end of the reporting period, the Department had fully drawn on all financing facilities, details of which are disclosed
in the financial statements.
(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable
in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the
reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

28. Services provided free of charge
2014

2013

$000

$000

During the period the following services were provided to other agencies free of charge
for functions outside the normal operations of the Department.
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Department

2,201

1,149

See also note 2(t) Support provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands Trust.

29. Commitments
Lease commitments (a) (b)
2014

2013

$000

$000

Within 1 year

493

376

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

797

316

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable
as follows:

Later than 5 years

76

-

1,365

692

1,365

692

1,365

692

Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases

(a) The property leases are non-cancellable leases for periods up to 5 years with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent
rent provisions within the lease agreements require that the lease payments shall be increased by the CPI or other criteria such
as independent valuations or fixed percentages. Options may exist to renew the leases at the end of the lease term.
(b) Motor vehicle leases are non-cancellable leases over a fixed period and/or targeted number of kilometres.

Expenditure Commitments
2014

2013

$000

$000

The Department has contracted commitments for its
grants program via service/grant agreements at the end of
the reporting period that are not recognised as liabilities
and are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

266

791

-

266

-

-

266

1,057
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30. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Department had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2014.

31. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
No information has become apparent since the end of the reporting period which materially affects the financial statements.

32. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as presented in the financial statement
titled ‘Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates’ are shown below: Significant variations are
considered to be those greater than 10% or $200,000.

Total appropriations provided to deliver services
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2013.
Adjustments to the original budget due to corrective measures implemented by Government.
2014

2014

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

10,505

8,650

1,855

6,253

6,436

(183)

Accountable Government (b)

25,673

11,628

14,045

Community Development (c)

3,452

9,874

(6,422)

Heritage Management (a)
Land Management

(a) Heritage Management
The variance is primarily due to decrease in employee benefits and supplies and services. This was due to the computation of
2013-14 actuals consistent with the allocation methodology used in the prior year.
(b) Accountable Government
The variance is primarily due to transfer of Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund project funding to the
Department of Regional Development and Browse to Treasury and the return of Kalumburu grants monies. In addition, there
was an internal restructure moving the Patrols program to Community Development.					
(c) Community Development
The variance is primarily due to an internal restructure moving the Patrols program from Accountable Government to
Community Development.

Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013
2014
Heritage Management (a)
Land Management (b)

2013

Variance

$000

$000

$000

8,650

12,471

(3,821)

6,436

6,174

262

Accountable Government (c)

11,628

17,659

(6,031)

Community Development (d)

9,874

4,857

5,017

(a) Heritage Management
The variance is primarily due to decrease in employee benefits as a result of an internal restructure during the year and lower
spending in grants and subsidies.
(b) Land Management
The variance is primarily due to increase in employee benefits as a result of an internal restructure during the year
(c) Accountable Government
The variance is primarily due to a decrease in employee benefits as a result of an internal restructure during the year. Lower
grants and subsidies were also reported during the year due to the completion of the stolen wages program. In addition, the
Patrols program was moved from Accountable Government to Community Development.
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(d) Community Development
The variance is primarily due to increase in employee benefits as a result of an internal restructure during the year. In
addition, the Patrols program was moved from Accountable Government to Community Development..

Capital Contribution
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2014.
2014

2014

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

616

616

-

2014

2013

Variance

$000

$000

$000

616

1,587

(971)

Capital Contribution

Significant variances between actual results for 2012 and 2013.

Capital Contribution

Variance due to reduction in capital appropriation for the Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement System (AHELP) project
from $1.239m in 2012-13 to $553K in 2013-14. Also, the roll-out of Shared Services was completed last year. The financial
system for which $348K was received in 2012-13 was completed. No further capital expenditure was required in 2013-14 for
this project.

33. Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial Instruments held by the Department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables
and payables. All of the Department’s cash is held in the public bank account (non-interest bearing) including restricted cash. The
Department has limited exposure to financial risks. The Department’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the
risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is a possibility of the Department’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Department.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment, as shown in the table at Note 33(c) ‘Financial
instruments disclosures’ and note 17 ‘Receivables’.
Credit risk associated with the Department’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amount receivable for
services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the Department trades only with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of
credit risk.
The Department monitors receivables on a monthly basis and follows up any that are past due. Debtors are contacted to
determine the reason for non-payment via phone and by follow up letters. In instances where this proves unsuccessful and the
amount outstanding is considered material, the debt is referred to a debt collector after consideration of the nature of the debt
and any impact this would have on our client base.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Department is exposed
to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.
The Department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
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Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Department’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Department does not trade in foreign currency
and is not materially exposed to other price risks. Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note
33(c), the Department is not exposed to interest rate risk because apart from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash
and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and have no borrowings.

(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2014

2013

$000

$000

Cash and cash equivalents

4,197

9,876

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

2,447

2,561

183

201

2,110

939

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables (a)
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk
The following tables detail the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the aging analysis of financial assets. The
Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets
as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial
assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Department.
The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets
it holds.

Aged analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
Carrying
Amount

Not past
due
and not
impaired

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

3 months
to
1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Financial Assets
2014
Cash assets

4,197

4,197

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash assets

2,447

2,447

-

-

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

183

149

16

3

-

15

-

-

6,827

6,793

16

3

-

15

-

-

2013
Cash assets

9,876

9,876

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash assets

2,561

2,561

-

-

-

-

-

-

201

29

141

31

-

-

-

-

12,638

12,466

141

31

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure
section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate
exposure

Maturity
Dates
3 months More than 1
year
to
1 year

Non
interest
bearing

Nominal
Amount

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

Cash assets

4,197

4,197

4,197

4,197

-

-

-

Restricted cash
assets

2,447

2,447

2,447

2,447

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

183

183

183

183

-

-

-

6,827

6,827

6,827

6,827

-

-

-

2,110

2,110

2,110

-

2,110

-

-

2,110

2,110

2,110

-

2,110

-

-

-

-

Cash assets

9,876

9,876

9,876

9,876

-

-

-

Restricted cash
assets

2,561

2,561

2,561

2,561

-

-

-

Weighted Carrying
Average Amount
Effective
Interest
Rate
%
2014
Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
2013
Financial Assets

Receivables (a)

201

201

201

201

-

-

-

12,638

12,638

12,638

12,638

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Payables

939

939

939

-

939

-

-

939

939

939

-

939

-

-

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.

Interest Rate Sensivity Analysis
The Department does not have any items which are subject to interest rate fluctuations.

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair
value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the
applicable notes.
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34. Remuneration of senior officers
Remuneration

36. Affiliated bodies

The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries,
superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits
for the financial year fall within the following bands are:
$

2014

2013

20,001 to 30,000

1

-

60,001 to 70,000

1

-

120,001 to 130,000

1

-

140,001 to 150,000

-

2

160,001 to 170,000

-

5

180,001 to 190,000

2

2

190,001 to 200,000

3

1

200,001 to 210,000

1

-

210,001 to 220,000

1

-

220,001 to 230,000

1

-

230,001 to 240,000

1

-

270,001 to 280,000

1

1

Base remuneration
and superannuation

$000

Total remuneration of senior officers:

1,923

1,690

-

-

Annual leave and long service leave
accruals
Other benefits
Total remuneration of senior officers

$000

392

270

2,315

1,960

The total remuneration includes the superannuation
expense incurred by the Department in respect of senior
officers.
No senior officers are members of the pension scheme.

During the course of the year the Department provided
funding to various government and non-government
agencies. Of the non-government organisations, it may
have occurred during the financial year, that some of them
would be defined as affiliated bodies under the terms of
Treasurer’s Instruction 951. Due to regulations imposed on
grant recipients, financial acquittals are by the provision
of a financial statement detailing expenditure of that
particular grant only. The statement provided does not
always disclose other income sources, and therefore the
Department is not in a position to accurately determine
which of the grant recipients are classified as an affiliated
body.

37. Supplementary financial information
Write-offs
During the financial year nil (2013: nil) was written off the
Department’s asset register under the authority of:

Auditing the accounts, financial
statements and performance
indicators

2014

2013

$000

$000

47

46

47

46

The expense is included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.
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2013

$000

$000

The Accountable Authority

-

-

The Minister

-

-

Executive Council

-

-

-

-

Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
2014

2013

$000

$000

Losses of public moneys and, public
and other property through theft or
default

-

-

Amounts recovered

-

-

-

-

35. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect of
the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

2014

Gifts of Public Property

Gifts of public property provided by
the Department

2014

2013

$000

$000

-

-

-

-
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2014.		

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Amelia Yam						Cliff Weeks
A/Chief Finance Officer				

Director General

Date: 28 August 2014					

Date: 28 August 2014
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Supplies and services

6

3,711

3,249

Depreciation expense

7

958

999

Accommodation expenses

8

36

-

Grants and subsidies

9

2,684

335

10

467

13

7,856

4,596

Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Commonwealth grants and contributions

11

-

-

Interest revenue

12

187

178

Other revenue

13

657

4,547

Total Revenue

844

4,725

Total income other than income from State Government

844

4,725

7,012

(129)

3,004

2,880

3,004

2,880

(4,008)

3,009

(9,615)

(6,934)

(9,615)

(6,934)

(13,623)

(3,925)

NET (REVENUE)/COST OF SERVICES

Income from State Government
Services received free of charge

14

Total income from State Government

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus

24

Total other comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

25

735

733

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

15

5,518

6,056

Receivables

16

27

-

Other current assets

17

44

48

6,324

6,837

116,500

127,102

116,500

127,102

122,824

133,939

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property

18

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables

21

362

65

Provisions

22

1,607

1,327

Other current liabilities

23

1,960

-

Total Current Liabilities

3,929

1,392

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,929

1,392

118,895

132,547

NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Contributed equity

24

-

-

Reserves

24

128,850

138,465

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

24

(9,955)

(5,918)

118,895

132,547

TOTAL EQUITY

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Note

2014

2013

$000

$000

(411)

(307)

(36)

-

(724)

(335)

(90)

(147)

(6)

(1)

(187)

(13)

191

184

Rent received

73

-

Other receipts

558

2,448

6

1

90

146

(536)

1,976

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(536)

1,976

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

6,789

4,813

6,253

6,789

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Supplies and services
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases

GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

Receipts

Interest received

GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Contributed
equity

Reserves

Accumulated
surplus /
(deficit)

Total equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

-

145,399

(8,927)

136,472

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

3,009

3,009

Other comprehensive income

-

(6,934)

-

(6,934)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(6,934)

3,009

(3,925)

Capital appropriations

-

-

-

-

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

-

138,465

(5,918)

132,547

Balance at 1 July 2013

-

138,465

(5,918)

132,547

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

(4,008)

(4,008)

Other comprehensive income

-

(9,615)

-

(9,615)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(9,615)

(4,008)

(13,623)

Capital appropriations

-

-

-

-

Other contributions by owners

-

-

-

-

Distribution to Owners

-

-

(29)

(29)

Total

-

-

(29)

(29)

Balance at 30 June 2014

-

128,850

(9,955)

118,895

Note

Balance at 1 July 2012

24

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS PLANNING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2014 have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).
The Authority has adopted any applicable new and revised
Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting
Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or
amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($’000).

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been
made in the process of applying the Authority’s accounting
policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key
assumptions made concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
(c) Reporting Entity
The reporting entity comprises the Authority and bodies
included at note 32 'Related body'.

(a) General statement

(d) Contributed Equity

The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares
general purpose financial statements in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s
Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s
Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format
and wording.

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made
to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in
the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated
by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners
(at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can
be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations
have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955
Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public
Sector Entities and have been credited directly to
Contributed Equity.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s
Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence
over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting using the historical cost convention,
except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been
measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
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The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than
as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements,
are designated as contributions by owners where the
transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major
business activities as follows:
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

Financial Statements

Grants and Contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority
obtains control over the assets comprising the
contributions, usually when cash is received. Other nonreciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners
are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services
are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not
donated.
Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on
a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of
non current assets and some revaluations of non current
assets.

(f) Property
Capitalisation / Expensing of assets
Items of property costing $5,000 or more are recognised
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed
(depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property
costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are
restated proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land
is determined by comparison with market evidence for
land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use
land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low
restricted use land).
Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided
annually by the Western Australian Land Information
Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The most significant assumptions and judgements in
estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining
estimated economic life. Professional judgement by the
valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a
clear distinction between market type assets and existing
use assets.
Refer to note 18 'Property' for further information on
revaluations.
Derecognition

Initial recognition and measurement

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, any
revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the
asset revaluation surplus.

All items of property are initially recognised at cost.

Asset revaluation surplus

For items of property acquired at no cost or for nominal
cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments
and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as
described in note 18 ‘Property.'

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the
revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and
buildings. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less
accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated
impairment losses. The authority does not hold any assets
other than land and buildings.
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value
of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current
market buying values determined by reference to recent
market transactions. When buildings are revalued by
reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net a mount restated to the
revalued amount.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future
economic benefits.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight line method, using rates which
are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class
of depreciable asset are:
Buildings

50 years

Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair
value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of
existing use. This normally applies where buildings are
specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for
existing use building is determined by reference to the
cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement
cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined
on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross
103

Financial Statements
(g) Impairment of Assets

Financial Liabilities

Property is tested for any indication of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication
of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.
Where an asset measured at cost is written down to
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is
written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised
as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive
income. As the Authority is a not for profit entity, unless a
specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset,
the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

•

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated,
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a
significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/ amortisation reflects the level of consumption
or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement
costs.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus
assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined
by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value
is determined by reference to depreciated replacement
cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
Refer to note 20 'Impairment of assets' for outcome of
impairment reviews and testing.
(h) Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of
financial instrument:
•

Loans and Receivables, and

•

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the
following classes:
Financial Assets
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•

Cash and cash equivalents

•

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

•

Receivables

Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments
is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction
cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is
the transaction cost or the face value because there is no
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is
not required as the effect of discounting is
not material.
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
(j) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original
invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables
identified as uncollectible are written off against the
allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective
evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the
debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it
is due for settlement within 30 days.
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(k) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the
Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a
result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally
settled within 30 days.
(l) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and
are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is probable
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period.
Remediation Costs
A provision is recognised where the Authority has a legal
or constructive obligation to undertake remediation work.
Estimates are based on the present value of expected future
cash outflows.
The Authority has a liability under the Contaminated Sites
Act 2003 to rehabilitate affected parcels of land. Where
contaminated sites have been identified and classified as
'contaminated -remediation required' or it is probable that
the site will be classified as 'contaminated -remediation
required' and a reliable estimate can be made of the cost of
remediation of the site, a provision has been made.
See note 22, 'Provisions'.
(m) Assets and services received free of charge or for
nominal cost
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal
cost, that the Authority would otherwise purchase if not
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the
assets or services where they can be reliably measured. A
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position.
Where assets or services are received from another State
Government agency, these are separately disclosed
under Income from State Government in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
(n) Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Decision making authority in respect of the Aboriginal
land estate effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands
Trust (ALT), a body established under the auspices of the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (AAD) - now titled
the Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) - was established
on 1 November 1994, it effectively took over the operations
of its originating agencies, including the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by the
AAPA at that time were transferred to the AAD.

As a consequence, administrative support for the AAPA and
the ALT is provided by staff employed by the DAA. These
expenses were brought to account as Supplies and Services
and as Resources Received Free of Charge. See note 6
'Supplies and services' and note 14 'Income from State
Government'.
(o) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified
to be comparable with the figures presented in the current
financial year.

3. Judgements made by management in applying
accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements about the application
of accounting policies that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.
Contaminated Sites
The provision toward restoration costs of contaminated sites
are treated as current liabilities as the Authority has reported
these to the Department of Environment Regulation in
accordance with the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 and has
applied to the Contaminated Sites Management Account
(CSMA) for funding to complete restoration works. If funds
are provided, restoration works can be completed within
12 months from balance sheet date. See note 22 'Provisions'
and note 26 'Contingent Liabilities'.

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Authority makes key estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
Contaminated Sites
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date. Because the Authority cannot reliably
estimate the timing of future cash flows, the provision is
based on current costs that are reviewed annually.

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and
estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting
Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2013 that impacted on the Authority.
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Title
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value
and requires additional disclosures for assets and liabilities measured at fair
value. There is no financial impact.

AASB 1048

Interpretation of Standards
This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references to the
Interpretations in all other Standards to be updated by reissuing the service
Standard. There is no financial impact..

AASB 2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120,
121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and
Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]
This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing
AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]
This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate
the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of setoff associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised
financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial
impact.

AASB 2012-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009 11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]
This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as a consequence of the annual improvements process. There
is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of
AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial
Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further
amendments are also made to numerous consequential amendments arising
from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There is no financial
impact.

AASB 2012-9

Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039
The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in
Australia has no financial impact for the Authority during the reporting period
and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets and liabilities continues to
be measured in accordance with enacted or substantively enacted tax law
pursuant to AASB 112.46-47.
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AASB 2012-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other
Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132,
133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12]
The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends the mandatory
application date of Standards for not for profit entities accounting for interests in other
entities. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.
Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from
revisions to the Australian Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after
20 December 2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There
is no financial impact for Part A of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any
following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Authority. Where applicable, the
Authority plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

Int 21

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
Levies

01-January-2014

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a
government levy imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for
the Authority at reporting date.
AASB 9

Financial Instruments

01-January-2018

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018.
The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose
Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012 10
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other
Amendments. The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the
Authority as it does not impact accounting for related bodies and the Authority has
no interests in other entities.
AASB 11

Joint Arrangements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures, introducing new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement
that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangement.
Mandatory application of the Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by
AASB 2012 10. There is no financial impact for the Authority as the new standard
continues to require proportional consolidation of the Authority’s rights to assets
and liabilities for the unincorporated joint operation.
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AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements
under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128
Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.
There is no financial impact.
AASB 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01-January-2016

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements

01-January-2014

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, removing the consolidation requirements
of the earlier standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure requirements
for the preparation of separate financial statements. Mandatory application
was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012 10. There is no financial
impact.
AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

01-January-2014

This Standard issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 128 Investments in
Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the accounting treatments
of changed ownership interest.
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Authority as
it does not hold investments in associates or and the accounting treatments for
joint operations is consistent with current practice.
AASB 1031

Materiality

01-January-2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian
guidance on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on
materiality in other Australian pronouncements. There is no financial impact.
AASB 1055

Budgetary Reporting

01-July-2014

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the circumstances
in which they are to be included in the general purpose financial statements
of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The Authority
will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations
of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no
financial impact.
AASB 2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Int 10 & 12]

01-January-2015

[modified by AASB 2010-7]
AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in
December 2010.
AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to
1 January 2015. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
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AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7,101, 107,
112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

01-January-2014

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance
of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. For not-for-profit
entities it applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential
impact of the Standard.
AASB 2012-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132].

01-January-2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including
clarifying the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off"
and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net
settlement.
The Authority does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities
that it intends to settle on a net basis, therefore there is no financial impact.
AASB 2013-3

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for NonFinancial Assets.

01-January-2014

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no
financial impact.
AASB 2013-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139]

01-January-2014

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances
where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is
novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of
laws or regulations. The Authority does not routinely enter into derivatives or
hedges, therefore there is no financial impact.
AASB 2013-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation
Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10,
12 & 1049].

01-January-2014

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance to
clarify whether determine whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity
when financial returns aren’t a key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results from
the adoption of the amended AASB 10.
AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments.

01-January-2014

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising
from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the application
of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The application date of AASB 9 was
subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Authority has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise
there is no financial impact for Part B.

1 January 2017
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AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

01-July- 2014

The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.

01-January-2015
01-January-2016
01-January-2018

Changes in Accounting Estimates

9. Grants and subsidies		

There were no changes in accounting estimates that have an
effect in the current period or are expected to have an effect in
future periods.

2014

2013

$000

$000

-

295

29

40

2,253

-

402

-

2,684

335

Grants to organisations from:

6. Supplies and services

Electricity and water

Recurrent Funds:
2014

2013

$000

$000

49

10

Services and contracts
•

support from Department of
Aboriginal Affairs (a) (b)

•
•

2,201

1,149

support from Landgate (a)

802

1731

other services and contracts

547

354

Consumables
Operating leases
Repairs and maintenance
Travel
Other Supplies & Services

1

-

99

-

2

-

10

5

-

-

3711

3,249

(a) See also notes 2(m) 'Assets and services received free
of charge or for nominal cost' and note 14 'Income from State
Government'.
(b) See also notes 2(n) 'Support from Department of Aboriginal
Affairs'.

7. Depreciation expense		
2014

2013

$000

$000

958

999

2014

2013

$000

$000

Lease rentals

-

-

Repairs and maintenance

3

-

33

-

36

-

Buildings

8. Accommodation expenses		

Other
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- general funds
- intestate funds
- Aboriginal Community Emergency
Reponse Fund
Capital Funds:
- Commonwealth funding
Strategic Intervention Package (a)

(a) See note 15 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents' for more
detail.

Details of significant grants (above $40,000) paid are as
follows. (Details of Intestate grants are not provided as each is
limited to a maximum of $500).
Mining Rents & Royalties
Ngaanyatjarra Council

-

295

2,253

-

402

-

2,655

295

Aboriginal Community Emergency
Reponse Fund
Grant expenses and return of unspent
monies
Strategic Intervention Package
Return of unspent monies

10. Other expenses		

Building Maintenance
Other Expenses (a)

2014

2013

$000

$000

448

-

19

13

467

13

(a) Audit Fees, see also note 31, 'Remuneration of the auditor'.
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11. Commonwealth grants and contributions		

information services for maps and aerial photography, land
information enterprises and sale of digital data free of charge.

No Commonwealth grants were received during the
year 2013-14.

15. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
12. Interest revenue		

Interest revenue

Rent

Other (a)

1,075

1,483
222

2013

$000

$000

187

178

Mining rents and royalties (a)

187

178

Community facilities (b)

369

Strategic Intervention Package (c)

427

415

Multifunctional Police Facilities (d)

612

597

3,031

3,308

Intestate Account (f)

1

28

CL Johnson Bequest (g)

2

2

2014

2013

$000

$000

224

2,450

73

-

Intestate receipts
Royalties Received

2013
$000

2014

13. Other revenue

Other State Government agencies

2014
$000

1

4

299

336

60

1,757

657

4,547

(a) Revenue from the sale of Sandalwood in ALT Beagle Bay
property.

14. Income from State Government		
2014

2013

$000

$000

Current

Special Purpose Grants (e)

H Drake-Brockman (h)

1

1

5,518

6,056

(a) Mining rents and royalties
Improvements to land held by the Authority, on which mining
activity takes place.
(b) Community facilities
The provision of facilities, such as swimming pools, in certain
regional communities.
(c) WA Strategic Intervention package
The Strategic Intervention package is Commonwealth funding
provided specifically for the following nine projects.
1.

Kalumburu Strategic Intervention Package - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.

2.

Halls Creek Support Project - Boys Town and East
Kimberley housing - Project being completed by the
Department of Housing.

3.

Halls Creek Treatment Facility - Ngnowar Aerwah Seven
Mile Rehabilitation Service - Project being completed by
the Drug and Alcohol office of the Health Department.

4.

Wiluna Educational and Vocational Training Complex Project being completed by the Department of Education
and Training.

(a) Where assets or services have been received free of
charge or for nominal cost, the Authority recognises revenues
equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value
of those services that can be reliably determined and which
would have been purchased if they were not donated. Where
the contribution of assets or services are in the nature of
contributions by owners, the Authority makes an adjustment
direct to equity.

5.

Pilbara Transition to work accommodation facilities Project being completed by the Department of Industry
and Resources.		

6.

Mainstreaming East Kimberley Town Based Communities
- Project being completed by Department of Housing.

7.

Urgent water quality upgrades - Project being completed
by the Department of Housing.

(b) See also note 2(n) 'Support from Department of Aboriginal
Affairs'.

8.

Home Ownership to create wealth - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.

(c) The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority manages land and
building assets totalling $116,500,005. Landgate provide land

9.

Bidyadanga Strategic Intervention - Project being
completed by the Department of Housing.

Services received free of charge
from other State government
agencies during the financial period
(a)
Determined on the basis of the
following estimates provided by the
relevant agencies
Department of Aboriginal Affairs (b)
Landgate (Land information and
valuation) (c)

2,202

1,149

802

1,731

3,004

2,880
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17. Other current assets

(d) Multifunctional police facilities
Develop police facilities at 4 remote communities Burringurrah, Looma, Wingellina and Bidyadanga.
(e) Special Purpose Grants
Funds received from outside organisations for defined projects
including Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund.
(f) Intestate Account
Funds received from the Public Trustee for intestate estates.

(h) H Drake-Brockman
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds to award a
prize in the form of books, apparatus, equipment etc. to the
Aboriginal student who achieves the highest Tertiary Entrance
Examination (TEE) aggregate results in Western Australia in
accordance with the bequest of the late
Henrietta Drake-Brockman.

16. Receivables
2014

2013

$000

$000

26

-

Allowance for impairment of
receivables

-

-

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
receivable

1

-

27

-

Current

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of
receivables.

Balance at start of year

-

-

Doubtful debts expense recognised
in the statement of comprehensive
income

-

-

Amounts written off during the year

-

-

Impairment losses reversed during
the period

-

-

Balance at end of year

-

-

-

-

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other
credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(j) 'Receivables' and note 29 'Financial
instruments'.
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2013
$000

44

48

44

48

18. Property

(g) CL Johnson Bequest
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds for the
benefit of Aboriginal Missionaries in Western Australia during
illness in accordance with the bequest of the late Christian
Larsen Johnson to the Department of Native Welfare
(now abolished).

Receivables

Accrued interest

2014
$000

2014

2013

$000

$000

Freehold land (b)

17,442

19,051

Reserve land (c)

50,490

55,907

1,637

3,995

263

258

69,832

79,211

Land at fair value (a)

Pastoral leases (d)
Other leases (e)

Buildings at fair value (a)
Buildings at fair value

52,517

53,038

Accumulated depreciation of
buildings

(5,849)

(5,147)

46,668

47,891

116,500

127,102

Total property

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2013 by the
Western Australian Land Information Department (Valuation
Services). The valuations were performed during the year
ended 30 June 2014 and recognised at 30 June 2014. In
undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by
reference to market values for land: $43,451,500 (2013:
$46,329,300) and buildings: $9,475,500 (2013: $9,422,500).
For the remaining balance, fair value of land and buildings was
determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and
fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison
with market evidence for land with low level utility (high
restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property'.
(b) Freehold land is land that is alienated (removed) from
the Crown Estate and granted to an entity. This may be an
individual or an organisation (government or non-government).
(c) Reserve land is Crown Land set aside for public purposes:
for example, hospitals, schools, conserving plants and
animals, national parks, recreation, and for the use of
Aboriginal people. State reserves are created under the Land
Administration Act 1997.
(d) Pastoral leases are Crown Land set aside for grazing stock
and all purposes connected with that.
(e) Other leases are Crown Land designated as general or
state leases issued for a particular purpose. For the Aboriginal
Affairs Planning Authority a general lease may be for the
purpose of the use and benefit of Aboriginal people.
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Information on Fair Value measurement is provided in note 19.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table
below.
Freehold
Land
2014
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Carrying amount at end of year

Pastoral
Leases

Other
Leases

Buildings

Total

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

19,050

55,908

3,995

258

47,891

127,102

-

-

-

-

-

-

(29)

-

-

-

(29)

(1,608)

(5,389)

(2,358)

5

(265)

(9,615)

-

-

-

-

(958)

(958)

17,442

50,490

1,637

263

46,668

116,500

23,198

57,649

3,995

263

49,929

135,034

Disposals
Depreciation

Reserves

2013
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,148)

(1,741)

-

(5)

(1,040)

(6,934)

-

-

-

-

(999)

(999)

19,050

55,908

3,995

258

47,891

127,102

Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

19. Fair value measurements
Assets measured at fair value:
Level 1
2014

Level2

Level3

Fair Value
at end of period

$000

$000

$000

$000

Land (Note18)

-

43,451

26,381

69,832

Buildings (Note 18)

-

9,476

37,192

46,668

-

52,927

63,573

116,500

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Land and Buildings (Office Accommodation) are derived using the market approach. Market evidence
of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per
square metre.
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

2014
Fair Value at start of period

Land

Buildings

$000

$000

32,881

38,468

-6,471

-507

Additions
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
recognised in Profit or Loss
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Transfers (from/(to) Level 2)
Disposal

-29

Depreciation Expense
Fair Value at end of period

-769
26,381

37,192

Total gains or losses for the period included in
profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains

-

-

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the
period included in profit or loss for assets held
at the end of the reporting period

-

-

Valuation processes
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.
Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer. Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's
Instructions require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations will
utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.
Fair value for existing use specialised buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future
economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the
current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the
already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset. Current
replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of
comparable utility and the gross project size specifications.
Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land
that is unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or,
comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).
Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Authority are derived and evaluated as follows:
Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2)
The costs of constructing specialised buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the Authority, then
indexed by movements in CPI.
Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset
These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).
Selection of land with restricted utility
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility. Relevant
comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation
Services).
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Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements
Description and
fair value as at 30
June 2014
$000

Valuation
technique(s)

Unobservable inputs

Range of
unobservable inputs
(weighted average)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair
value

Land
$26,381

Market approach

Selection of land with
similar approximate
utility

$0 - $100 per m2
($16 per m2)

Higher value of similar land
increases estimated
fair value.

Buildings
$37,192

Depreciated
Replacement Cost

Consumed economic
benefit/ obsolescence
of asset

0% - 6.94% per year

Greater consumption
of economic benefit or
increased obsolescence
lowers fair value.

Historical cost per
square metre floor
area (m2)

$365 - $39,166 per m2 Higher historical cost per
($740 per m2)
m2 increases fair value.

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 18

Basis of Valuation
In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non‑financial assets, these assets are
valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions
or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements.
These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and the Authority’s
enabling legislation.

20. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to property at 30 June 2014.
The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the
reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

21. Payables
2014

2013

$000

$000

362

65

Accrued Expenses

-

-

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
payable

-

-

362

65

Current
Trade Payables

See also note 2(k) 'Payables' and note 29 'Financial instruments'.

22. Provisions

Contaminated Sites (a)

2014

2013

$000

$000

1,607

1,327

1,607

1,327
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(a) This provision represents liabilities associated with remediation of contaminated land under the Contaminated Sites Act
2003. See note 2(l) 'Provisions', note 3 'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies' and note 4 'Key
sources of estimation uncertainty'.
Movement in provisions
Carrying amount at start of year

1,327

2,414

-

(1,087)

280

-

Payments/other sacrifices of
economic benefit

-

-

Unwinding of discount

-

-

1,607

1,327

2014

2013

$000

$000

1,960

-

1,960

-

Previous provisions reversed
Additional provisions recognised

Carrying amount at end of year

23. Other liabilities

Current
Other Liabilities (a)

(a) This represents provision for demolition works in the Mallingbarr community and unspent funding for Aboriginal
Community Emergency Response Fund and Western Australian Strategic Intervention Package.

24. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents
the residual interest in the net assets of the Authority. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity
resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
2014

2013

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Net assets transferred to
Government ***

-

-

Balance at end of period

-

-

Balance at start of period
Contributions by owners
Transfer of net assets from other
agencies **
Distributions to owners

Transfers of land - no charge. See note 2(d) 'Contributed Equity'.
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Reserves
2014

2013

$000

$000

138,465

145,399

(9,349)

(5,894)

(266)

(1,040)

128,850

138,465

(5,918)

(8,927)

Changes in Accounting Policy

-

-

Correction of Prior Period Errors

-

-

Restated balance at start of year

(5,918)

(8,927)

Asset Revaluation Surplus
Balance at start of year
Net revaluation (decrements)/increments:
Land
Buildings
Balance at end of year
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year

(29)

-

Result for the period

Distribution to Owners

(4,008)

3,009

Balance at end of year

(9,955)

(5,918)

Total equity at end of period

118,895

132,547

** TI 955 designates non-discretionary and non-reciprocal transfers of net assets between state government agencies as
contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038. Where the transferee agency accounts for a nondiscretionary and non-reciprocal transfer of net assets as a contribution by owners, the transferor agency accounts for the
transfer as a distribution to owners.
*** TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be accounted for as distribution to owners in
accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038.

25. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the
Statement of Financial Position as follows :

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see
note 15)

2014

2013

$000

$000

735

733

5,518

6,056

6,253

6,789
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Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Net (revenue)/cost of services

2014

2013

$000

$000

(7,012)

129

958

999

3,004

2,880

(26)

6

4

-

Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense
Resources received free of charge
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a)
Other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)

297

(950)

Provisions

280

(1,087)

1,960

-

(1)

(1)

(536)

1,976

Other current liabilities
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)
Net cash used in operating activities

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect
of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.

26. Contingent liabilities
In addition to the liabilities included in the financial statements, the Authority has the following contingent liabilities:

Contaminated Sites
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the
Department of Environment Regulation (DER). In accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the
risk to human health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – remediation
required or possibly contaminated – investigation required, the Authority may have a liability in respect of investigation or
remediation expenses.
In addition to the contaminated sites reported at Note 22 'Provisions', during the year the Authority reviewed all sites and
determined that their status remained unchanged from the previous year. One additional site was added to the contaminated
site register. These sites will remain as a contingent liability until such time as funding is identified to complete Preliminary
Site Investigations, classifications determined and it is practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the
uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows. While there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future
expenses that may be incurred in the remediation of these sites, the Authority may apply for funding from the Contaminated
Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative work or to meet remediation costs that may be required.
As at reporting date, preliminary investigations have been conducted on two sites. It was determined that the best estimate
of potential remediation is $1.607m

Insurance
Riskcover has advised that due to their change in requirements for coverage, specific information on buildings and contents
on the land that is owned or under the ALT's responsibility will be required before full insurance coverage is provided. A
review is underway to provide this information. Until this information is fully provided to Riskcover, there is a risk that the
assets will remain uninsured.
Legal advice is that the Authority is not obliged to provide insurance cover for fixed assets on ALT land. Once the government
has made a policy decision on insuring buildings within Indigenous communities, the ALT policy would then need to be
reviewed and based on providing coverage for those assets for which it has exclusive possession and those for which there
are external covenants.
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27. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
There have been no material events occurring after 30 June 2014.

28. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actual results for 2013 and 2014 are
detailed below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $100,000.

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2014
2014

2014

Estimate

Actual

Variation

$000

$000

$000

7,550

-

(7,550)

466

844

378

Supplies and Services

1,712

3,711

1,999

Depreciation expense

1,149

958

(191)

Income
Grants and Subsidies
Other revenue
Expenses

Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses

0

36

36

370

2,684

2,314

44

467

423

1,655

3,004

1,349

Income from State Government
Services received free of charge

Income
Grants and Subsidies
The funding for the Royalties for Region - Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund was transferred to the
Department of Regional Development.
Other revenue
Variance is primarily due to an increase in interest revenue, rent and other one-off revenues.

Expenses
Supplies and services
Variance is primarily due to an increase in resources received free of charge from the Department of
Aboriginal Affairs.
Depreciation expense
Variance is primarily due to a decrease in value of buildings.
Accommodation expenses
Variance is primarily due to payment of rates and charges categorised under Accommodation expenses instead of Services
and Contracts.
Grants and subsidies
Variance is primarily due to the return of unspent monies to the Department of Regional Development under the Royalties
for Region - Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund and Western Australian Strategic Intervention Package.
Other expenses
Variance is primarily due to an increase of building maintenance expenses due to demolition works and removal of
asbestos at ALT properties.
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Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Variance reflects an increase in cost of services received free of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs.

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2014
2014

2013

Variance

$000

$000

$000

657

4,547

(3,890)

Supplies and services

3,711

3,249

462

Grants and subsidies

2,684

335

2,349

467

13

454

3,004

2,880
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Income
Other revenue
Expenses

Other expenses
Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Income

Income
Other revenue
Variance is primarily due to prior year transactions. These included the reversal of provision for a contaminated site at
Cullacabardee and receipt of monies for the Royalties for Region - Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund and
also additional funding from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs.

Expenses
Supplies and services
Variance is primarily due to an increase in costs of services received free of charge from the Department of Aboriginal
Affairs.
Grants and subsidies
Variance is primarily due to the return of unspent monies to the Department of Regional Development under the Royalties
for Region - Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund and Western Australian Strategic Intervention Package.
Other expenses
Variance is primarily due to increase in repair and maintenance required for ALT properties.

Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Variance is primarily due to an increase in services received free of charge from the Department of Aboriginal Affairs
and Landgate.
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29. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. The Authority’s overall risk management
program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority's receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Authority.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in Note 29 ( c ).
Credit risk associated with the Authority's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amount receivable
for services (holding account). For receivables, the Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The
Authority has policies in place to ensure that it trades with organisations with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority's exposure to bad debts is
minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on past experience and current and expected changes in
client credit ratings. Refer note 16 'Receivables'.
Liquidity Risk
The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. Liquidity risk arises when the
Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Authority's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Authority does not trade in foreign currency
and is not materially exposed to other price risks. The Authority does not borrow money to fund any of its operations.
Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table below the Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk.
All funds held by the Authority are in interest bearing accounts.
(b) Categories of Financial Instruments		
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
2014

2013

$000

$000

735

733

5,518

6,056

71

48

362

65

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables (a)
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
(c) Financial instrument Disclosures
Credit Risk
The following table discloses the Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets.
The Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial
assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired
financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority.
The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.
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Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
Carrying
Amount

Not past
due
and not
impaired

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

3 months
to
1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

735

735

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,518

5,518

-

-

-

-

-

-

Receivables (a)

26

26

-

-

-

-

-

-

Accrued interest

44

44

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,323

6,323

-

-

-

-

-

-

733

733

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,056

6,056

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48

48

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,837

6,837

-

-

-

-

-

-

2014
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets

2013
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
Accrued interest

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Liquidity Risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Authority's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section
analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate
exposure

Maturity
date
1-5
years

More
than 5
years

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Variable
interest
rate

Noninterest
bearing

Nominal
amount

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

3
months
to 1
year

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

735

735

735

5,518

5,518

5,518

27

27

27

44

44

44

6,253

71

6,324

6,324

-

-

-

362

362

362

-

-

362

362

362

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

Carrying
Amount

Fixed
interest
rate

%

$000

Cash assets

2.8

735

-

Restricted
cash assets

2.8

5,518

-

Receivables
(a)

-

27

-

Accrued
interest

-

44

-

6,324

-

362
362

2014
Financial
Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables

-

2013
Financial
Assets
Cash assets

3.3

733

-

733

733

733

Restricted
cash assets

3.3

6,056

-

6,056

6,056

6,056

Receivables
(a)

-

0

-

0

0

0

Accrued
interest

-

48

-

48

48

48

6,837

-

6,789

48

6,837

6,837

-

-

-

-

65

-

-

65

65

-

-

65

-

-

65

-

-

65

65

-

-

65

-

-

Financial Liabilities
Payables

-

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority's financial assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that
the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
-100 basis points

+100 basis points

Carrying
amount

Surplus

Equity

Surplus

Equity

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash
equivalents

735

(7)

(7)

7

7

5,518

(55)

(55)

55

55

(62)

(62)

62

62

733

(7)

(7)

7

7

6,056

(61)

(61)

61

61

(68)

(68)

68

68

Total Increase/(Decrease)
2013
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash
equivalents
Total Increase/(Decrease)
Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair
value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the
applicable notes.

30. Remuneration of senior officers
There are no senior staff employed by the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA). The AAPA does not employ any
staff. The Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) manages the AAPA and the remuneration of senior staff is reported in the
DAA statements. See also note 2(n) 'Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs'.

31. Remuneration of the auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial
statements and key performance
indicators

2014

2013

$000

$000

14

13

The expense is included at note 10 'Other expenses'.

32. Related body
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) was deemed a related body by the Treasurer by virtue of Section 3(b) of the Financial
Management Act 2006. The revenue, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the ALT have been included within the financial
statements of the Authority.
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33. Special Purpose Accounts
Special Purpose Account section 16(1)(c) FMA
C L Johnson Bequest Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds for the benefit of Aboriginal Missionaries in Western Australia during
illness in accordance with the bequest of the late Christian Larsen Johnson to the Department of Native Welfare
(now abolished).
2014

2013

$000

$000

Balance at start of period

2

2

Receipts

-

-

Payments

-

-

Balance at end of period

2

2

Henrietta Drake-Brockman Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds to award a prize in the form of books, apparatus, equipment etc. to the
Aboriginal student who achieves the highest Tertiary Entrance Examination (TEE) aggregate results in Western Australia in
accordance with the bequest of the late Henrietta Drake-Brockman.
2014

2013

$000

$000

Balance at start of period

1

1

Receipts

-

-

Payments

-

-

Balance at end of period

1

1

Intestate Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds received from the Public Trustee two years after the death of an Aboriginal
person who dies intestate. These funds are used for the betterment of Aboriginal people.

Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments
Balance at end of period

2014

2013

$000

$000

28

61

2

7

(29)

(40)

1

28

2014

2013

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

34. Supplementary financial information
Write-Offs

Bad Debts written off under the
authority of the Accountable Authority
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Losses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes
2014

2013

$000

$000

Losses of public moneys and, public
and other property through theft or
default

-

-

Amounts recovered

-

-

-

-

2014

2013

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

Gifts of Public Property

Gifts of public property provided by the
Authority
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Department of Aboriginal Affairs’ performance, and fairly
represent the performance of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the year ending 30 June 2014.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 28 August 2014
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Effectiveness Indicators
The Department commissioned Catalyse, an
independent research consultancy, to design,
conduct and evaluate its performance against its
effectiveness indicators through an online survey
of key stakeholders between 23 June and 18 July
2014 in each of the service areas.

The overall results from this survey period
remained relatively consistent when compared to
the previous period, providing a baseline for the
setting of targets in forthcoming
measurement periods.

A total of 234 stakeholder responses were
received from a total sample of 328 available
stakeholders, resulting in an overall response rate
of 71 per cent and an error rate of +/- 3.1 per cent
based upon a 95 per cent confidence level.

Heritage
Outcome 1:
Achieving the right balance between development and protection of Aboriginal heritage to ensure
economic opportunities are leveraged to the benefit of the whole community.
Heritage Management
Percentage of direct stakeholders
satisfied with the services related
to the management of
Aboriginal heritage

2012-13
Actual

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Actual

2013-14
Variance

81

65

90

+ 25

By conducting a survey of stakeholders the
Department seeks to measure its effectiveness in
achieving the right balance between:
•

development, which leads to the delivery of
economic benefits for all Western Australians;
and

•

the protection of Aboriginal heritage, which
will ensure that it is preserved for the future
enjoyment of both Aboriginal people and the
wider community.

The services related to achieving this balance
include the provision of secretariat and policy
support for the Aboriginal Cultural Material
Committee; provision of advice on matters relating
to Aboriginal heritage; processing of statutory
approvals; administration of the heritage sites
register; research; and heritage compliance
activities.
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A total of 41 respondents participated in the
survey, from a database of 61 stakeholders. This
database comprised 56 per cent industry;
32 per cent government agencies; 7 per cent
Aboriginal organisations; and 5 per cent service
providers who were involved in activities related to
Aboriginal heritage.
This resulted in an overall 68 per cent response
rate.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of
90 per cent represents a positive variance of
25 per cent above the target rate.
This finding is a positive reflection on the recent
and ongoing activities undertaken to reform
and improve the Aboriginal heritage sector and
processing times.

Key Performance Indicators
Land
Outcome 2:
Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust estate to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.
Land Management
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the management of the
Aboriginal Lands Trust estate
This measure seeks to determine the
Department’s effectiveness in better utilising the
Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) estate to achieve
shared social and economic outcomes.
The services related to the management of the
ALT Estate includes the provision of secretariat
and policy support to the ALT; provision of advice
to the ALT, Aboriginal people, the Hon Peter Collier
MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs, government
and key stakeholders in relation to management
of ALT, processing of land access approvals,
assisting with the operational management and
development of land, management of strategic
initiatives in accordance with the ALT strategic
plan, and facilitating the transfer of land to
Aboriginal people.
A total of 56 respondents participated in
the survey, from a database of 80 available
stakeholders.

2012-13
Actual
63

2013-14
Target
65

2013-14
Actual
59

2013-14
Variance
-6

This database comprised 15 per cent Aboriginal
corporations and land and sea councils;
11 per cent industry; 7 per cent non-government
organisations; and 67 per cent government
agencies that were involved in activities related to
Aboriginal land. This resulted in an overall
70 per cent response rate.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of
59 per cent represents a variance of
6 per cent below the target rate. This finding
may be attributed to activities to address some
significant and contentious projects in 2013-14, to
address legacy issues on ALT held land, including
pastoral leases. A focus on better management
and surveillance of the ALT estate, including
an internal systems and process review and
update, will positively impact upon subsequent
survey results and lead to better opportunities for
divestment of the ALT estate.

Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project at Forrest Place, Perth.
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Accountable Government
Outcome 3:
Improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government investments.
Accountable Government
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied
with the services related to improving
accountability for the delivery of services to
Aboriginal people
The determination as to the effectiveness in

improving accountability for the delivery of
outcomes from government investment was
primarily based upon the activities and actions
associated with the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee and the Department’s ability to monitor
and audit the quality and impact of investments in
services for Aboriginal people.
The services related to improving accountability
for the delivery of services to Aboriginal people
involves the provision of secretariat and policy
support for the AACC, including advice,
monitoring and reporting on the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments; and intergovernmental activities.
A total of 74 respondents participated in the
survey, from a database of 111 stakeholders.
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2012-13
Actual
66

2013-14
Target
65

2013-14
Actual
58

2013-14
Variance
-7

This database comprised 46 per cent government
agencies involved in relevant committee
activities; and 54 per cent community service
providers and/or non-government organisations
that were involved in the delivery of services of
Aboriginal programs, funded through government
investment. This resulted in an overall 66 per cent
response rate.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of
58 per cent represents a variance of
7 per cent below the target rate. This finding
may be attributed to the introduction of the
Accountable Government Framework and a
lack of stakeholder understanding regarding the
Directorate’s new function. Further, a realignment
of focus in the regions also caused some
confusion amongst stakeholders in relation to the
role of regional staff.

Key Performance Indicators

Community Development
Outcome 4:
Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal Community to independently determine and further
their priorities.
Community Development
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied
with the services related to community
development programs for Aboriginal
people
The Department seeks to support the Aboriginal
community to independently determine and further
its priorities through enhancing partnerships that
build the capacity of Aboriginal people to improve
social outcomes.
The services included in determining the extent
to which the Department has been effective
against this outcome include the provision of
secretariat and policy support for the WAAAC;
developing partnerships that build capacity of
Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes;
and reconciliation activities.
A total of 63 respondents participated in the
survey, from a database of 77 stakeholders.

2012-13
Actual
89

2013-14
Target
65

2013-14
Actual
87

2013-14
Variance
+ 22

This database comprised 12 per cent Aboriginal
Corporations; 40 per cent charitable/
not-for-profit organisations; 39 per cent
Government organisations; 1 per cent Land and
Sea Councils; and 8 per cent other. This resulted
in an overall response rate of 82 per cent.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of
87 per cent represents a positive variance of
22 per cent above the target rate. This finding may
be attributed to the prioritisation of key activities
within the Community Development Directorate
and increased engagement with the Western
Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council and broader
Aboriginal Community.

Connie Sue Track. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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Efficiency Indicators
The following indicators of efficiency relate to the services delivered by the Department:
Heritage Management
1.1 Average processing time per
statutory approval
1.1 Average time to update register
1.3 Average time to complete initial
assessment

2012-13
Actual

•

69 days

- 1 day

17 days
3 days

33 days
28 days

12 days
3 days

- 21 days
- 25 days

As part of the ongoing Aboriginal heritage
administrative reform, initiatives have been
introduced to improve processes and procedures
relating to the handling of statutory applications
and compliance. In particular, the introduction
of new electronic forms and the ability to lodge
these forms online through the Aboriginal Heritage
Electronic Lodgement Project had a positive effect
on efficiency.

ability of the Department to effectively manage
and protect Aboriginal heritage and reduce
the risk of impact on sites through the timely
updating of the register and completion
of initial site disturbance investigation and
compliance assessments.

2.1 Average processing time per
land transaction
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The variances in the actuals when compared to
the previous year indicate that the results over
the past two years are relatively consistent. This
is a positive reflection on the considerable and
ongoing efforts to reform Aboriginal heritage
processing times and processes over the past
few years.

2012-13
Actual
9 days

The above indicator seeks to measure the
Department’s efficiency against the services
related to the management of the ALT Estate.
Results against this measure will assist in
identifying improvements and achievements in the:
•

2013-14
Variance

70 days

processing of statutory approvals which
contribute to better integration with
development processes and more timely
realisation of State economic development
opportunities; and

Land Management

2013-14
Actual

65 days

The above indicators seek to measure the
Department’s efficiency against the services
provided in the management of Aboriginal
heritage. Results against these measures
will assist in identifying improvements and
achievements in the:
•

2013-14
Target

effective management of estate land and its
associated assets through the timely approval
of leases by the ALT and processing of transit
permits; and

•

2013-14
Target
10 days

2013-14
Actual
8.7 days

2013-14
Variance
- 1.3 days

better integration with development processes
through the timely processing of mining
entry permits.

The overall reduction in processing times,
represents a positive variance of 1.3 days,
which may be attributed to recent and ongoing
activities undertaken to reform the ALT and land
management processing times and will continue
to improve following an internal systems and
process review and management system update.

Key Performance Indicators

Accountable Government
3.1 Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal
population

2012-13
Actual
$221,690

The above indicator seeks to measure the
Department’s efficiency against the services
provided in relation to the accountability of
government. The measure is calculated by
applying the cost incurred by the Department in
delivering these services to the Western Australian
Aboriginal population (per 1,000).
Results against this measure will assist in
identifying improvements and achievements
in greater accountability for the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments through activities relating to the
AACC, and other intergovernmental activities such
as the implementation of national
partnership agreements.

Community Development
4.1 Average cost per initiative funded

The above indicator seeks to measure the
Department’s efficiency against the services
provided in relation to supporting the Aboriginal
community to independently determine and further
its priorities.
Results against this measure will assist in
identifying improvements and achievements in the
provision of initiatives funded by the Department,
including the Aboriginal Community Patrols
Program; reconciliation activities; and grants to
community organisations that seek to build the
capacity of Aboriginal people to improve
social outcomes.

$327,956

2013-14
Actual
$142,070

2013-14
Variance
- $185,886

The decrease in expenditure is due to a number of
factors, including:
•

an internal realignment of resources;

•

the transfer of the Aboriginal Community
Emergency Response Fund project, and
associated funding, to the Department of
Regional Development; and

•

the adoption of an allocation methodology
which improves the identification of costs by
allocating major types of expenditure, such as
projects to the responsible
service directorates.

2012-13
Actual
$16,807

2013-14
Target

2013-14
Target
$16,459

2013-14
Actual
$24,091

2013-14
Variance
$7,632

A combination of higher overall program costs
and lower number of initiatives has resulted in an
increase to the average cost per initiative funded.
The variance is attributed to the cessation of the
NAIDOC funding program as well as a number
of larger grants being reassigned to Community
Development from other areas of the Department.
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s performance, and
fairly represent the performance of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for the year ending
30 June 2014.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date: 28 August 2014
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The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority contributes to the Government goal of FINANCIAL and
ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY: managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery
of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on the private sector.
The desired Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority outcome for Government in 2013-14 was that the
use and management of the land held by the ALT, or for which the ALT is in any manner responsible,
accords with the wishes of the Aboriginal inhabitants of the area so far as that can be ascertained and
is practicable.
The Department commissioned Catalyse, an independent research consultancy, to design, conduct
and evaluate its performance against its effectiveness indicators through an online survey of key
stakeholders between 23 June and 18 July 2014 in each of the service areas, including against the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s outcome.

Effectiveness Indicators
The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s effectiveness in achieving its outcome was measured in the
context of the use and management of the land held by the Aboriginal Lands Trust in accordance with
the wishes of the Aboriginal inhabitants.
The Authority commissioned Catalyse, an independent research consultancy, to design, conduct
and evaluate its performance against its effectiveness indicators through an online survey of key
stakeholders between 23 June 2014 and 18 July 2014.
A total of 56 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 80 available stakeholders.
This database comprised 15 per cent Aboriginal corporations and land and sea councils; 11 per cent
industry; 7 per cent non-government organisations; and 67 per cent government agencies who were
involved in activities related to Aboriginal land. This resulted in an overall 70 per cent response rate and
an error rate of +/- 7.0 per cent based on a 95 per cent confidence level.

The proportion of stakeholders who found the Authority's management
of the land on behalf of Aboriginal people satisfactory
100
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87.4

81.8
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Target
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The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 59 per cent represents a variance of 20 per cent below
the target rate. This finding may be attributed to activities to address some significant and contentious
projects in 2013-14, to address legacy issues on ALT held land, including pastoral leases. A
focus on better management and surveillance of the ALT estate, including an internal systems and
process review and update, will positively impact upon subsequent survey results and lead to better
opportunities for divestment of the ALT estate.

Efficiency Indicators
This efficiency indicator measures the average cost (calculated by adjusted cost of service) per hectare
spent managing and maintaining the estate. Costs include services received free-of-charge from the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs for administration of the estate and spending on maintenance of
the estate.
The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority does not receive appropriations from government and minimal
income is derived from the use on the land. Most management costs are incurred by the Department.

Average Cost per Hectare
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2019-10
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Actual
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Target

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

Ministerial Directives

No Ministerial directives were received during the financial year.

Other Financial Disclosures
Pricing Policies
The Department does not provide any paid services.

Capital Works
The Department carried out capital expenditure during 2013–14 totalling $1,330,800.

Employment and Industrial Relations
Staffing Levels*
2012-13
Full-time permanent

2013-14

120

106

Full-time contract

28

29

Part-time (permanent + contract)

10

18

7

8

165

161

On secondment
Total

*Total headcount comprises all staff currently employed and/or remunerated by the Department.
Approved full-time equivalent for the Department is 154. The sum includes trainees and attached officers.

Staff Development
The Department engages with Aboriginal Western
Australians and all levels of Government to
improve the delivery of services. It facilitates the
development of policy and programs which deliver
economic, environmental and social benefits to
Aboriginal communities. The Department works
in partnership with key stakeholders to strengthen
accountability for the delivery of outcomes from
government investments for Aboriginal people.

The Department takes its responsibilities very
seriously and prides itself on delivering on
the commitments it makes. The professional
development of its people is a strong priority.
The Department's people are behind the many
services it provides to its stakeholders and the
experience the Department's stakeholders receive
is a direct result of its culture and behaviour. The
priority is focused on achieving the shift in culture
that is required to deliver improvements to the way
the Department operates.

Workers Compensation
No Workers Compensation claims were recorded during this financial year.
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Governance Disclosures
Conflict of Interest
At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no senior officers, or
firms of which senior officers are members, or entities in which senior officers have substantial interests,
had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with the Department and senior officers.

Boards and committee remuneration
Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council
Position

Name

Type of
remuneration

Period of
membership

Total

Chair

Michael Hayden

Per meeting,
sessional

2013-14

$15,570

Member

Gail Allison

Per meeting

2013-14

$3,072

Member

Colleen Drage

Per meeting

2013-14

$5,436

Member

Josey Hansen

Per meeting

2013-14

$3,260

Member

Harold Graham

Per meeting

2013-14

$2,100

Member

Robert Isaacs

Per meeting

2013-14

$2,634

Member

Jacqueline Minney

Per meeting

2013-14

$2,680

Member

Gordon Gray

Per meeting

2013-14

$2,290
Total

Gross
actual
remuneration

$37,042

Aboriginal Lands Trust
Position

Name

Type of
remuneration

Period of
membership

Total

Chair

Clinton Wolf

Per meeting

2013-14

$4,863

Member

Kyra Bonney

Per meeting

2013-14

$1,510

Member

Irene Davey

Per meeting

2013-14

$4,929

Member

Patrick Green

Per meeting

2013-14

$6,040

Member

Shane Hamilton

Per meeting

2013-14

$1,280

Member

Irene Stainton

Per meeting

2013-14

$1,510

Member

Preston Thomas

Per meeting

2013-14

$11,680
Total
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Gross
actual
remuneration

$31,812
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Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee
Position

Name

Type of
remuneration

Period of
membership

Total

Chair

Gavin Fielding

Per meeting

2013-14

$3,825

Member

Vanessa Davies

Per meeting

2013-14

$2,240
Total

Gross
actual
remuneration

$6,065

Advertising
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Department incurred the following
expenditure in advertising, market research, polling, direct mail and media advertising.
1. Total expenditure for 2013-14 was $101,785.50
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:

Category
Advertising agencies
Advertising agencies total

Supplier Name
Adcorp Australia Limited

Market research organisations
Market research organisations
Market research organisations total
Polling organisations
Polling organisations total
Direct mail organisations
Direct mail organisations total
Media advertising organisations
Media advertising organisations total
Grand Total

Painted Dog
Bodhi Alliance
SurveyMonkey.com
CreateSend

Amount Paid
$47,916.87
$47,916.87
$41,637.75
$11,800.00
$53,437.75
$300.00
$300.00
$130.88
$130.88
$0.00
$0.00
$101,785.50
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
The Department is committed to ensuring that
people with a disability, their families and carers
are able to access the Department’s services,
facilities and information, providing them with the
same opportunities, rights and responsibilities
enjoyed by all other people in the community.
1. People with a disability have the same
opportunities as other people to access the
services of, and any events organised by,
a public authority.
The Department ensures all events are accessible
to people with disabilitiy.
2. People with a disability have the same
opportunities as other people to access
the buildings and other facilities of a public
authority.
Staff and line management are informed of
support services available, such as ergonomic
assessment and provision of ergonomic
equipment, workstation modifications, access
to injury management services and Employee
Assistance Program.
3. People with a disability receive information
from a public authority in a format that will
enable them to access the information as
readily as other people are able to
access it.
The Department is currently re-designing its
website in full compliance with the Western
Australia Government Website Governance
Framework as set out under Public Sector
Commissioner’s Circular 2009-02 Website
Governance Framework. The website is planned
to be live by October 2014.
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4. People with a disability receive the same
level and quality of service from the staff of
a public authority as other people receive
from the staff of that public authority.
The intranet includes Guidelines for Accessible
Formats and Office Accessibility Checklist, and
useful disability contacts is promoted to staff.
5. People with a disability have the same
opportunities as other people to make
complaints to a public authority.
As part of the Department’s continuous
improvement, current mechanisms for complaints
management is reviewed at least annually to
ensure they meet the needs of people
with disability.
6. People with a disability have the same
opportunities as other people to participate
in any public consultation by a public
authority.
The Department has implemented video
conferencing facilities to accommodate staff and
stakeholders who are unable to travel to head
office for various reasons, including disability.
7. People with a disability have the same
opportunities as other people to obtain
and maintain employment with a public
authority.
The Department’s Human Resources branch,
in consultation with line management, supports
employees with disability (including mental health
issues) to enable full participation in the workplace
and to complete all duties as required.
The Department provides support services for
staff with disability and reminds staff about the
purposes and processes for disclosing a disability.

Other Legal Requirements

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes
The Department is committed to providing an
environment for staff that embraces and supports
knowledge of, and respect for, equity and cultural
inclusion, safety and security and which is free
from harassment and discrimination.
This Code of Conduct sets the Department’s
minimum standards and obligations relating to the
conduct and behaviour expected of
staff members.
This Code of Conduct is designed to act as a
reference point for the Department and those
members of the community with whom the
Department has dealings. Its purpose is to affirm
that the Department expects that those who carry
out work and related activities for the Department
will observe the highest standards of conduct
and probity.
Officers and affiliates of the Department are
expected to carry out their work in an ethical,
collegial environment and perform their duties with
efficiency, fairness, impartiality, integrity
and honesty.
Compliance with the Code will foster and maintain
staff and public trust and confidence in the
integrity and professionalism of the Department.
In accordance with section 31(1) of the Public
Sector Management Act 1994, the Department
has complied with the Public Sector Standards
Code of Ethics and the Department’s
Code of Conduct.

The recruitment and selection and the discipline
policies and procedures have been reviewed
and amended to reflect the Public Sector
Commissioner’s Employment Standard and
Discipline Procedures. New employees are
provided with information during induction,
and expected behaviours of all employees are
assessed through the Department’s performance
review and development system. Staff exit
questionnaires also provide valuable information
with regards to meeting the Standard’s
requirements.
As outlined in Public Sector Commissioner’s
Circular 2009-03, it is expected that all public
sector employees will receive training in line with
the Public Sector Commission’s Accountable and
Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) program. The
Department has engaged in an intensive program
of training and to date 86 per cent of staff have
attended AEDM training.
There was one breach claim against Public Sector
Commissioner’s Employment Standard received
during 2013-14. The claim was investigated by the
Public Sector Commission and found to have
no merit.
There was one formal grievance claim received
during 2013-14 and the matter was investigated
and resolved internally by the Department.

Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs with
Miss NAIDOC 2014 participants, Dr Robert Isaacs OAM,
WAAAC Member and Mr Cliff Weeks, Director General.
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Record Keeping Plans
The Department continues to operate with its
Record Keeping Plan which was approved
for a period of five years by the State Records
Commission on 2 October 2009. This was
a requirement under section 19 of the State
Records Act 2000.
Since the Department has a large volume of
critical and sensitive records associated with
comprehensive cultural awareness information,
training is provided to staff on understanding
cultural and the traditional Aboriginal values.
These values need to be applied with staff and
the community when accessing and viewing such
records. Access provisions to these records can
be viewed on the Department’s website
www.daa.wa.gov.au.

During the year, the Department evaluated the
recordkeeping systems, practices and training
and a number of improvements were identified,
including:
• a major review of the Department
recordkeeping systems and practices resulted
in the procurement of a new Electronic
Document and Records Management System
(EDRMS) that is currently being deployed; and
•

it is envisaged that the new EDRMS will
significantly improve productivity as well as
facilitate sound recordkeeping practises, to
streamline access to corporate information
and enhance business process improvement.

This new system will enable the Department
to continue to improve the integration of
recordkeeping with its key business operating
systems. This reflects the Department’s
commitment to improve and streamline
recordkeeping processes by automatically
generating electronic records from its corporate
business systems, such as the Aboriginal Heritage
Electronic Lodgements Program (AHELP).

Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1992 (FOI Act)
created a general right of access to documents
held by State and local government agencies. In
compliance with Part 5 of the FOI Act, this Annual
Report serves the purpose as an Information
Statement.
A description of the kinds of documents held by
the Department and arrangements for accessing
those records can be viewed on the Department’s
website www.daa.wa.gov.au. A formal Freedom of
Information (FOI) application is required to access
documents that are not available as part of the
Department’s normal course of business.
Freedom of Information applications
for 2013-14
During 2013-14, the Department received 15 valid
FOI applications.
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Lodgement of Freedom of Information
applications
FOI applications, payment of application fees and
any associated charges, if applicable, should be
directed to the FOI Coordinator:
In person at the DAA East Perth Office
FOI Coordinator
Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Ground Floor, 151 Royal Street
East Perth WA 6004
By mail
FOI Coordinator
Department of Aboriginal Affairs
PO Box 3153
East Perth WA 6892
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Fees and charges
• The rate of fees and charges are set under the
FOI Act.

•

reasons for deleting any matter;

•

reasons for deferring access;

•

arrangements for giving access;

•

reasons for refusing access to any matter;

•

Application fee for non-personal information
is $30.00.

•

There are no fees for applications for personal
information about the applicant.

•

the amount and basis for any charges
levied; and

•

Charges for dealing with the application are
set at a standard rate of $30.00 per hour, or
pro rata for a part of an hour.

•

the rights of review and procedures to
be followed.

•

Charges for supervising inspection of
documents are set at a standard rate of
$30.00 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an
hour.

•

Charges for photocopying are $30.00 per
hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour for staff
time and 20 cents per copy.

The FOI Act provides the applicant or third party
the right to have the Department’s initial decision
reviewed. A written request for a review of that
decision must be submitted within 30 days after
being given notice of the decision. There is no
lodgement fee payable for an internal review.

•

Charges for time taken by staff transcribing
information from a tape or other device are set
at a standard rate of $30.00 per hour, or pro
rata for a part of an hour.

•

Charges for duplicating a tape, film or
computer information will be the actual cost.

•

Charges for delivery, packaging and postage
will be the actual cost.

Processing applications
The Director General for the Department has
delegated authority for making initial decisions
to the FOI Coordinator, and conducting internal
reviews into applications under the FOI Act to the
Department’s Principal Legal Officer.
The Department’s FOI Coordinator is responsible
for administering the process of FOI applications
within the Department and is the initial contact
point for members of the community, applicants,
third parties, the Office of the Information
Commissioner and other public sector agencies
for all FOI related matters.
Notice of decision
Applicants are provided with written notice of the
Department’s decision compliant with section
30 of the FOI Act, which includes the following
information:
•

date of the decision;

•

name and designation of the decision maker;

Review rights

The review will be conducted by a person other
than the person who made the original decision,
and is not subordinate to that person. In the
Department, that responsibility is assigned to
the Principal Legal Officer. The Department must
complete the review and provide a written notice
of decision within 15 days.
If the applicant or third party is still not satisfied,
then they may lodge a written complaint with the
Office of the Information Commissioner within
60 days following the internal review decision
(30 days for third parties). The Commissioner’s
decision is final unless an appeal is made to the
Supreme Court on a question of law.
Amendment of personal information
Individuals have the right to apply for amendment
to personal information about them, contained
in a document of the agency, if they believe the
information is inaccurate, incomplete, out-ofdate or misleading. Applications must be made
in writing to the Department’s FOI Coordinator
giving sufficient details to identify the document
and the matter, which the person believes to be
inaccurate, incomplete, out-of-date, or misleading
and their reasons for believing this to be the case.
The person must give details of the amendment
they want and provide an address for contact.
Written notice of the initial decision must be
provided to the applicant, setting out the reasons
for the decision and the applicant’s review rights.
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Substantive Equality
The Department’s commitment to equity and
social inclusion is a priority. The Department
promotes and disseminates best practice in equity
and advice to government and agencies on
policy initiatives.

The Compliance Framework consists of the
Department’s primary compliance obligations:
•

Risk management forms part of operational
and line management responsibilities and is
integrated into the business planning process.
In respect of a special risk, responsibility may
be assigned to a nominated officer of the
Department as determined by need.

•

Records Management Policy.

The Executive is also accountable for the policy
establishment and procedural principle for the
Department consistent with legal requirements
and government and community expectations.

•

Strategic financial management, financial
control framework, application of relevant laws
and acts, policies, procedures, annual audits
and other financial matters including audit risk
management.

The Department is committed to delivering its
strategic and operational objectives in accordance
with the law and principles of good governance
and with honesty, fairness, trust, accountability
and respect.

•

Heritage Compliance and AHELP, a module
has been developed within AHELP that
assists with the scheduling, recording and
quality assurance measures in Heritage’s
Compliance Branch. The system also provides
the Compliance Branch staff with the ability to
access all related documents, contacts and
investigations on a single screen. This has
reduced the time spent on administration by
approximately 50 per cent and created new
opportunities for Compliance Officers to attend
to urgent investigations, audits and
report-backs.

The Department’s Executive is responsible for
controlling and managing the concerns of the
Department and to approve and monitor systems
of control and accountability for the Department.

To do this, the Department must comply with
a diverse range of State and Commonwealth
legislation and regulatory requirements. The
Department‘s Compliance Framework aims to
assist the Department in its efforts to appropriately
manage its compliance obligations.

Determined to set a standard for the Western Australian public sector and the community, key aspects
of the Department's operations are devoted to leading to the development of better ways of working
and engaging with Aboriginal people and encouraging culturally inclusive workplaces.
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Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management
The Department is committed to providing and
maintaining high standards of health and safety in
the workplace.
It is the Department's belief that all injuries are
preventable. Health and safety is the responsibility
of everyone and all workers and visitors play an
important role in contributing to a healthy and
safe workplace.
Seventy one per cent of managers have attended
management training and further training will
be scheduled in 2014-15. The Department’s
Executive is responsible for ensuring effective
health and safety management, monitoring
performance and providing appropriate health and
safety assurances in their area of responsibility.
The Department’s Executive is to ensure
the implementation and maintenance of an
effective health and safety management across
the Department that is consistent with the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and
other legislative requirements.
The Department will ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and the Department’s Health
and Safety Management System and promote
an organisational culture that adopts health
and safety as an integral component of its
management philosophy.
The Department will continue to evolve its Health
and Safety Management System through a
process of continuous improvement with a focus
on managing health and safety risks. This will be
achieved in consultation with workers, the Safety
and Health Committee and Safety and Health
Representatives with the objective of preventing
workplace injury and illness.
The Department will continue to provide
appropriate health and safety training and update
information for all employees to access via the
Department’s intranet site.
The Department recognises the value of its staff
and is committed to preventing injury and illness
by providing a safe and healthy work environment.
The Department is equally committed to assisting
staff who sustain an injury or illness to return to
their pre-injury or illness status.
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This is achieved by working collaboratively with the
relevant employee and a team of professionals to
facilitate a safe return to meaningful work and in
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and
Injury Management Act 1981. The Department
also provides assistance to managers for
prevention and management of workplace injury
or illness.
An injury management system has been
developed to support the Department’s injury
management policy. It outlines steps to be taken
to assist an employee to return to work following a
work related injury, illness or disability.
Medical practitioners and/or Approved Vocational
Rehabilitation Providers (AVRP) provide assistance
in the injury management process in a number of
ways, including:
•

work assessments, clarification of duties to
ensure a safe return to work is undertaken;

•

worksite or job modifications, which may
include advising on the use of aids and
equipment in the workplace, vocational
assessments, retraining and placement
assistance where an injured employee is
unable to resume their pre-injury duties; and

•

undertaking a Functional Capacity Evaluation
to determine how much work an injured
employee can perform.

All findings of the AVRPs’ assessment are to
be discussed with the injured employee, the
Department and the treating medical practitioner.
The Manager, in consultation with the employee,
treating medical practitioner, Director Human
Resources, insurer and AVRP, will monitor the
employee’s progress towards the Return To Work
(RTW) goal. The RTW goal and program will be
amended as required.
Should it be necessary for the Department to
implement a RTW program for an employee, a
commitment is made to monitor the percentage of
agreed actions.

Other Government
Requirements

A report of performance against the following targets:

Indicator

Target

Number of fatalities

Zero (0)

Lost time injury/disease incidence rate

Zero (0)

Lost time injury severity rate

Zero (0)

Percentage of injured workers returned to work
within (i) 13 weeks and (ii) 26 weeks

N/A (refer to above)

Percentage of managers and supervisors
trained in occupational safety, health and injury
management responsibilities

71 per cent and further training will be
scheduled in 2014

Luridgii Cultural Experience. Courtesy Tourism Western Australia.
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